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BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Dear Shareholders, 

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of Tapi Fruit Processing Limited (“the Company”), along 
with the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.  

CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited was earlier started as “Tapi Food Products” a home scale food processing industry in May 1999 by its 
Founder Director Ghanshyam Lukhi as a Proprietorship firm. 

Over the years TAPI has developed PAN-India distribution network and well-established brand that has enabled us to increase market 
penetration and expand our footprint across India and exports in more than 20 countries worldwide. 

Company has successful track record of over two decades in the Indian food industry which has enabled to develop an effective sustainable 
business model with stringent control over processes, including raw ingredient procurement, manufacturing operations, inventory 
management across large range of products and SKUs, management of distribution logistics across India. 

The Company strive towards all-round growth, so it not only grows bigger but also stronger together. The Company see further growth 
opportunities ahead by innovating with customers in new markets; seeing Globe as its Market and never hesitate to accept a business 
opportunity overseas. The Company’s approach is to diversify and to reach out for new developments and in-depth research to provide 
solutions has granted an edge to reach new markets. 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 AT GLANCE 

Financial Highlights INR In Hundred 

Particulars 

Standalone Consolidated 

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 17,49,760.90 21,01,666.52 20,18,862.53 22,28,526.71 

Other Income 9,020.98 25,479.76 9,216.14 25,733.74 

Total Income 17,58,781.88 21,27,146.29 20,28,078.67 22,54,260.45 

Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 18,26,843.15 20,79,523.47 20,73,944.57 21,97,681.28 

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax (68,061.28) 47,622.81 (45,865.90) 56,579.17 

Less: Depreciation 92,815.89 76,774.13 94,949.67 77,359.17 

Less: Finance Cost 9,383.15 5,913.85 9,395.10 5,919.65 

Profit Before Extraordinary & Exceptional Items and Tax  (1,70,260.31) (35,065.17) (1,50,210.67) (26,699.65) 

Less: Extraordinary & Exceptional Items (14,834.45) (10,975.26) (14,834.45) (10,975.26) 

Profit before tax (1,55,425.86) (24,089.91) (1,35,376.22) (15,724.39) 

Less: Current Tax - - 5,339.00 1,354.60 

Less: Earlier Years Tax - - 706.37 - 

Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 1,801.78 1,103.38 1,732.02 1,168.54 

Profit after Tax (1,57,227.64) (25,193.29) (1,43,153.61) (18,247.53) 

Financial Performance  

On Standalone Basis 

During the year under review, the revenue from operation of the Company was stood at INR 17,49,760.90 Hundred as against that of INR 
21,01,666.52 Hundred for previous year. Revenue from operation of the Company was decreased by 16.74% over previous year. The revenue 
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from operations of the Company is decreased due to complete closure of production for more than one month during the year, in order to 
facilitate the shifting of existing machinery and the installation of new machinery within the facility. 

Loss before Tax for the financial year 2024-25 stood at INR 1,55,425.86 Hundred as against Loss before Tax of INR 24,089.91 Hundred 
making the net loss of INR 1,57,227.64 Hundred for the financial year 2024-25 as against the net loss of INR 25,193.29 Hundred for the 
financial year 2023-24. Due to increase in raw material prices, other expenses and decrease in revenue from operation, the Company could 
not generate the requisite profit. 

The Board is making its continuous efforts for re-visiting the purchase policy of the Company and increasing the capacity utilization of 
manufacturing capacity. The company has expanded production capacity and production area for generating more revenue and profit. The 
Management is also confident that the addition of new automated production and packing machinery would help in achieving a reduction 
in fixed costs, and that reduced manual intervention in production would lead the Company to generate profit in the coming years. 

Company has also added ⁠New profitable Products as well as expansion in nutraceutical products which will help in generating more 
revenue and profits.  

On Consolidated Basis 

The consolidated revenue from operation of the Company for financial year 2024-25 stood at INR 20,18,862.53 Hundred as against that of 
INR 22,28,526.71 Hundred for previous year. Loss before Tax for the financial year 2024-25 stood at INR 1,35,376.22 Hundred as compared 
to INR 15,724.39 Hundred for the previous financial year 2023-24.  The consolidated net loss of INR 1,43,153.61 Hundred for the financial 
year 2024-25 as compared to INR 18,247.53 Hundred for the previous financial year 2023-24.  

DIVIDEND 

With a view to loss incurred during the year, your Directors regret to declare dividend for the financial year 2024-25 (Previous Year Nil).  

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE 

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. The loss incurred during the year has been adjusted against 
the carried forward balance of surplus account.  

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

During the year, your Company has not changed its business or object and continues to be in the same line of business as per the main 
object of the Company. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year under review, following changes were carried out in the authorized and paid-up share capital of the Company: 

Authorized Capital 

There was no any change in Authorized share capital of the company. 

The Authorized share Capital of the Company, as at closure of financial year 2024-25, was INR 5,00,000.00 Hundred divided into 5000000 
Equity Shares of INR 10.00 each. 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital  

Special Resolution passed by the Members at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on May 30, 2023, through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), the Company has allotted total 103500 convertible equity warrants, each exchangeable  
into one equity shares, to persons other than promoters and promoter group, on Preferential Basis, at an Issue Price of INR 154.00 per Equity 
Warrant. 

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the company has allotted 70500 equity shares on October 12, 2024 and 33000 Equity 
Shares on November 27, 2024 at Rs. 154.00/- each including Premium of Rs. 144.00/- upon conversion of Warrants into equity share. Listing 
and Trading approval have been received from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Accordingly, Company has converted entire 
Warrant into equity share and there is no outstanding warrants for conversion into equity shares. 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up share Capital of the Company, as at closure of financial year 2024-25, was INR 4,27,300.00 Hundred divided 
into 4273000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each.  

The entire Paid-up Equity shares of the Company are listed at National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

After Closure of the financial year, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board of director of the company has allotted 27500 
equity shares on August 04, 2025 upon exercise of option under Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023. Listing 
and Trading approval have been received from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Accordingly, Paid up Share Capital of the 
company was Increased to INR 4,30,050.00 Hundred divided into 4300500 Equity Shares of INR 10 each. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Constitution of Board 

The composition of Board complies with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). Further, in pursuance of Regulation 15(2) of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the Company is exempted from 
requirement of having composition of Board as per Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations. 
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None of the Directors of Board is a member of more than ten Committees or Chairperson of more than five committees across all  the Public 
companies in which they are Director. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by all the Directors. 

None of the Director of the Company is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any Listed Company and is holding position of Independent 
Director in more than 3 Listed Company. Neither any of the Director of the Company is holding position as Director in more than 7 listed 
entities nor any of the Director of the Company serve as Independent Director in more than 7 listed entities. 

The Board of the Company comprises six Directors out of which three are Promoter Executive Directors and one is Professional Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director and two are Non-Executive Independent Directors.  

The Board comprise following Directors; 

Name of Director 
Category Cum 
Designation 

Date of 
Appointment at 

current Term 

Total 
Directorship~ 

No. of Committee  ̂
No. of Shares 

held as on 
March 31, 2025 

in which 
Director is 
Member 

in which 
Director is 

Chairperson 

Ghanshyam Lukhi$ Managing Director 16/07/2022 2 0 0 1672647 

Ashokkumar Lukhi Whole-time Director 16/07/2022 1 1 0 1133853 

Yash Lukhi Whole-time Director 03/08/2022 2 1 0 5000 

Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director 12/07/2022 2 1 1 4500 

Kamleshkumar 

Pandya 

Independent Director 18/07/2022 1 1 1 0 

Rekha Shah Independent Director 18/07/2022 1 2 0 0 

^ Committee includes Audit Committee and Shareholders’ Grievances Committee across all Public Companies. 

~ Excluding Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies & struck off Companies.   

$ Acting as the Chairperson of the Board. 

Disclosure by Directors 

The Directors on the Board have submitted notice of interest under Section 184(1) i.e. in Form MBP 1, intimation under Section 164(2) i.e. in 

Form DIR 8 and declaration as to compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company. None of the Directors of the Company is 

disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Board Meeting 

Regular meetings of the Board are held, inter-alia, to review and discuss the various businesses that require the approval of the Board. 

Additional Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other 

businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at registered office of the Company. 

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 06 (Six) times, viz May 15, 2024, September 02, 2024, October 12, 

2024, November 11, 2024, November 27, 2024 and March 17, 2025. The gap between two consecutive meetings was not more than one 

hundred and twenty days as provided in section 173 of the Act. 

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given below. 

Name of Director 
Ghanshyam 

Lukhi 
Ashokkumar 

Lukhi 
Yash Lukhi 

Naveen 
Anand 

Kamleshkumar 
Pandya 

Rekha Shah 

Number of Board Meeting 
held 

06 06 06 06 06 06 

Number of Board Meetings 
Eligible to attend 

06 06 06 06 06 06 

Number of Board Meeting 
attended 

06 06 05 06 06 06 

Presence at the previous 
AGM 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Independent Directors 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Company had two Non-Executive Independent 
Directors in line with the Companies Act, 2013. Further, both the Independent Directors of the Company had registered themselves in the 
Independent Directors’ Data Bank.  

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on March 17, 2025 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Board 
as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information 
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 between Company management and Board. 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on the website of 
the Company at www.tapifood.com. 

The Company has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they 

meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors of the Company possess the integrity, requisite experience and expertise, relevant for the 

industry in which the Company operates. 

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year. 

Information on Directorate 

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association and Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Naveen Anand, Non 
Executive Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing annual general meeting. He, being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment as such and seeks re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his appointment on the Board. 

The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI, of the person seeking re-appointment as Director is annexed to the 
Notice convening the seventh annual general meeting. 

Key Managerial Personnel 

During the year, the Company had Mr. Ghanshyam Lukhi as Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Ashokkumar Lukhi as Whole-Time 
Director of the Company, Mr. Yash Lukhi as Whole-Time Director of the Company, Mr. Dalsukhbhai Lukhi as Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company, Mr. Kashyapkumar Pandav as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company who were acting as Key Managerial 
Personnel in accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

As on date of this report, the Company has Mr. Ghanshyam Lukhi as Managing Director, Mr. Ashokkumar Lukhi as Whole-Time Director, 
Mr. Yash Lukhi as Whole-Time Director, Mr. Dalsukhbhai Lukhi as Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Kashyapkumar Pandav as Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer who are acting as Key Managerial Personnel in accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

Performance Evaluation 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors pursuant to 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in the following manners;  

 The performance of the board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the directors, on the basis of the criteria such as 
the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning etc.  

 The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the 
criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

 The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the 
criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be 
discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  

 In addition, the performance of chairperson was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 

Separate meeting of independent directors was on March 17, 2025 held to evaluate the performance of non-independent directors, 
performance of the board as a whole and performance of the chairperson, considering the views of executive directors and non-executive 
directors. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being 
evaluated. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that 
no material departures have been made from the same; 

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of 
the profit or loss of the Company for that year; 

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025 on going concern basis. 

e) The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal Financial Controls 
are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively. 
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

The Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act, has formed various committees, details of which are given hereunder. 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The composition of each of the above Committees, their respective role and responsibility are detailed in the Report on Corporate 
Governance annexed to this Report. 

1. Audit Committee 

The Company has formed audit committee for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling its overall responsibilities of monitoring 
financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for internal financial controls, governance and 
reviewing the Company’s statutory and internal audit activities. 

The terms reference of Audit Committee specified by the Board of Directors is briefed hereunder; 

Role of Committee 

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial 
statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and 

the fixation of audit fees. 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference 
to: 

i. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause (c) 
of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions; 

vii. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;  

5. Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly financial statements before submission to the board for approval. 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, right issue, 
preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/Draft Prospectus/ 
Prospectus /notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, 
and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit process. 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority 
of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

14. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on. 

15.  The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the 
observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related 
issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the company.   

16. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity 
or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board. 

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to 

ascertain any area of concern. 

18. The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in section 177(4) of Companies 
Act 2013 or referred to it by the Board.  

19. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-
payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

20. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;  
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21. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or discharging 
that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the candidate. 

22. To oversee and review the functioning of the vigil mechanism which shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of 
employees and directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
in appropriate and exceptional cases. 

23. Audit Committee will facilitate KMP/auditor(s) of the Company to be heard in its meetings.  

24. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 
crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the 
date of coming into force of this provision. 

25. To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the 
listed entity and its shareholders. 

26. To investigate any other matters referred to by the Board of Directors; 

27. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee or containing into SEBI Listing 
Regulations 2015. 

Review of Information by the Committee 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial information and results of operations; 

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by the management; 

3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit Committee. 

6. Statement of deviations: 

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms 
of Regulation 32(1). 

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of 
Regulation 32(7). 

Powers of Committee 

The Committee - 

1. May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including observations of auditors and review of 
financial statement before their submission to board; 

2. May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the Company; 

3. To investigate into any matter in relation to above items or referred to it by Board; 

4. To obtain legal or professional advice from external sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the 
Company; 

5. To seek information from any employee; 

6. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 

7. Any other power as may be delegated to the Committee by way of operation of law. 

Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings 

Audit Committee shall meet as and when required to review and discuss the matters specified in terms of reference of Audit Committee 
and number of times the Committee shall meet shall be as per Companies Act, 2013 or any other rules, regulations or standard applicable to 
the company.  

The quorum for the meeting shall be either two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is higher but there shall 
be presence of minimum two independent members at each meeting.  

During the year under review, Audit Committee met 3 (Three) times on May 15, 2024; September 02, 2024 and November 11, 2024.  

The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

Name of Members Category 
Designation in 

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to attend Attended 

Kamleshkumar Pandya Independent Director Chairperson 3 3 3 

Rekha Shah Independent Director Member 3 3 3 

Ashokkumar Lukhi Executive Director Member 3 3 3 
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The Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor of the Company are invited in the meeting of the Committee wherever requires. Chief Financial 

Officer of the Company is a regular invitee at the Meeting. Further, the Company Secretary of the Company is acting as  Secretary to the 

Audit Committee. 

Recommendations of Audit Committee, wherever/whenever given, have been accepted by the Board of Directors. 

Vigil Mechanism:  

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy enables the employees to 

report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. Further 

the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievances and provide for adequate 

safe guards against victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson 

of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. 

None of the Whistle blowers has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is 

available on the website of the Company at www.tapifood.com. 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the purpose of assisting the Board to identify persons who are 

qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and such other 

matters specified under various statute. 

The terms reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are briefed hereunder; 

Terms of reference 

1. Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid 

down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;  

2. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 

Board a policy relating to the level and composition of remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

3. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, 
knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required 
of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the 
capabilities identified in such description.  

For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and  

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

4. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board; 

5. Devising a policy on Board diversity; and 

6. Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees and increment of Executive Directors 

7. Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the Managing Director / Executive Director including pension 
rights; 

8. Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the Company) and evaluate the performance and 
determine the amount of incentive of the Executive Directors for that purpose. 

9. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation 
of independent directors.  

10. Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole Time Directors; 

11. Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors keeping in view the performance of the 
Company, standards prevailing in the industry, statutory guidelines etc; and 

12. To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme 

13. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once in a year. The quorum for a meeting of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee shall be either two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is greater, including at least 
one independent director in attendance. 
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During the year under review, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) times on June 03, 2024, September 02, 2024 and 
March 17, 2025. 

The composition of the Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

Name of Members Category 
Designation in 

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to attend Attended 

Kamleshkumar Pandya Independent Director Chairperson 3 3 3 

Rekha Shah Independent Director Member 3 3 3 

Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director Member 3 3 3 

The Company Secretary of the Company is acting as Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board is also being referred as the ‘Compensation Committee’ for the administration 

and superintendence of the ESOP – 2023. 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high-performance culture. It enables the Company to attract 

motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of 
the Company. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances to its Executive Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel. Annual increments are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary scale approved 

by the members and are effective from April 1, of each year.  

Key points of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy are; 

a. Policy on Appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel: 

o The policy is formulated to identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 
appointment as Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management personnel and recommend to the Board for his / her 

appointment. 

o A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/ she is considered for appointment. 

o In case of appointment of Independent Director, the Committee shall satisfy itself that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves, is restricted to applicable regulations in force. 

b. Policy on remuneration of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 

The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
vis-à-vis the Company. The Company follows mixed of fixed pay, benefits and performance based variable pay. The Company pays 
remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and allowance. The remuneration and sitting fees paid by the Company are within 
the salary scale approved by the Board and Shareholders.  

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the Company at 
https://www.tapifood.com/pdf/Nomination-and-Remuneration-Policy.pdf. 

Remuneration of Directors:                          (INR in Hundred) 

Name of Directors Designation Salary Sitting Fees Perquisite Total 

Mr. Ghanshyam Lukhi Managing Director 18,000.00 - - 18,000.00 

Mr. Ashokkumar Lukhi Wholetime Director 6,000.00 - - 6,000.00 

Mr. Yash Lukhi Wholetime Director 12,000.00 - - 12,000.00 

Mr. Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director - 220.00 - 220.00 

Mr. Kamleshkumar Pandya Independent Director - 240.00 - 240.00 

Mrs. Rekha Shah Independent Director - 300.00 - 300.00 
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ESOP – 2023 

The Board of Directors, at its Meeting held on May 1, 2023, approved the “Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 
2023” (‘ESOP – 2023’). The Members of the Company, vide their Special Resolutions passed in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 
May 30, 2023, approved Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023. Moreover, the Company has already received the 
In-principle Approval for Grant of Options and Listing of Shares allotted under the Scheme from the National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited. 

Moreover, the Board has also decided to extend the benefits of the Scheme and grant Options to eligible employees of Company,  and its 
group companies, including its subsidiary companies and associate companies also. The requisite resolutions were also passed in AGM held 
on 22nd September, 2023. 

Under the ESOP – 2023, the Company is authorised to create, grant, issue, offer and allot at any time or from time to time to or for the 
benefit of present and / or future Permanent Employees, options exercisable into not more than 100000 (One Lakhs Only) fully paid up 
equity shares of the Company (“Equity Share(s)”), under one or more tranches, each option would be exercisable for one Equity  Shares of 
the face value of Rupees 10.00 (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid up on payment of the requisite exercise price to the Company.  

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board of director in their meeting held on June 03, 2024 
Granted 34250 option to the eligible employees of the company as per the ESOP – 2023 of the company at an exercise price of 40.00 per 
share. 

After Closure of the financial year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board of director in their meeting held on August 
04, 2025 allotted 27500 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each upon exercise of ESOP.  

The disclosures with respect to Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 as required by Section 62 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021 are set out in Annexure-A to the Board’s Report. 

Disclosure Under Section 67(3)(C) of the Companies Act, 2013  

No disclosure is required under section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014 in respect of voting rights not exercised directly by the employees of the Company as the provisions of the said 
section are not applicable. 

3. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

The Company has constituted Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee mainly to focus on the redressal of Shareholders’ / Investors’ 
Grievances, if any, like Transfer / Transmission / Demat of Shares; Loss of Share Certificates; Non-receipt of Annual Report; Dividend 
Warrants; etc. The Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar & Transfer agents of the Company relating to the investors’ 
services and recommends measures for improvement. 

The terms reference of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is briefed hereunder; 

Terms of Reference 

1. Redressal of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints, including and in respect of:  

a. Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, splitting of shares, changing joint holding into single holding and vice versa, 
issue of duplicate shares in lieu of those torn, destroyed, lost or defaced or where the space at back for recording transfers have been 
fully utilized.  

b. Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal, etc.;  

c. Non-receipt of share certificate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of interest/dividend warrants, non-receipt of 
annual report and any other grievance/complaints with Company or any officer of the Company arising out in discharge of his 
duties.  

2. Review the process and mechanism of redressal of Shareholders’ /Investor’s grievance and suggest measures of improving the system 
of redressal of Shareholders’ /Investors’ grievances.  

a. Efficient transfer of shares; including review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares and debentures; 

b. Reviewing on a periodic basis the approval/refusal of transfer or transmission of shares, debentures or any other securities; 

c. Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal; 

d. Allotment and listing of shares; 

3. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

4. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar 
& Share Transfer Agent. 

5. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and 
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. 

6. Oversee the implementation and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for prevention of Insider Trading for 
Listed Companies as specified in the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended from time to time.  
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7. Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time by way of resolution passed by it in 
a duly conducted Meeting, and 

8. Carrying out any other function contained in the equity listing agreements as and when amended from time to time. 

Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance of each Member at Meetings 

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee shall meet as and when required to review and discuss the matters specified in terms of 
reference of Stakeholders relationship Committee and number of times the Committee shall meet shall be as per Companies Act, 2013 or any 
other rules, regulations or standard applicable to the company. The quorum shall be two members present. 

During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee met 3 (Three) times on May 15, 2024, September 02, 2024 and March 
17, 2025. 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below: 

Name of Members Category 
Designation in 

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to attend Attended 

Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director Chairperson 3 3 3 

Yash Lukhi Executive Director Member 3 3 2 

Rekha Shah Independent Director Member 3 3 3 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company provides secretarial support to the Committee. 

During the year under review, the Company had received 0 (zero) complaints from the Shareholders. There was no complaint pending for 
resolution as on March 31, 2025. 

PUBLIC DEPOSIT 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under. Hence, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India & the Provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Company 
Act, 2013 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules there under are not applicable. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS & SECURITY 

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in 
the notes to the Financial Statement.  

The Company has invested total INR 800.00 Hundred as Equity Contribution in its subsidiary– Tapi Wellness Private Limited.  

WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The link to access the Annual Return is https://www.tapifood.com/pdf/Annual-Return-2024-25.pdf 

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION 

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

which may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit 

Committee and the Board for approval, if required. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which 

are of a foreseen and repetitive in nature.  

All Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of 

business. Your Company had entered into transactions with the related parties which could be considered material in terms of Section 188 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Sect ion 134(3)(h) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in form AOC-2 is attached as Annexure - B. 

The Company had also obtained Members approval at its 5th AGM held on September 22, 2023 for entering into Material Related Party 

Transactions up to an amount of Rs. 7.5 Crore excluding applicable taxes with Tapi Wellness Private Limited (Subsidiary company) for F.Y. 

2024-25. 

There was no contracts, arrangements or transactions which was not executed in ordinary course of business and/or at arm’s length basis. 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, we have institutionalized the Anti-Sexual Harassment 
Initiative (ASHI) framework, through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at all the workplaces of the Company. Our policy 
assures discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual 
harassment and we are compliant with the law of the land where we operate. The Company has setup an Internal Complaints Committee 
(ICC) for redressal of Complaints. 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has received Nil complaints on sexual harassment, out of which Nil complaints have been 
disposed off and Nil complaints remained pending as of March 31, 2025. 

COMPLIANCE TO THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFITS ACT, 1961  

The company is in Compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. However, no maternity benefit was claimed during the year. 
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UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS OF PREFERENTIAL ISSUE 

The company has raised total INR 5,21,280.00 Hundred by way of Initial Public Offer. The proceeds of said issue has been fully utilized by 
the Company. 

During the year under review, the Company has raised total INR 82,582.50 Hundred by way of Preferential Issue of Equity Shares and 
Equity Warrants of the Company to Persons other than Promoters and Promoter Group. There was no deviation or variation in the 
utilisation of proceeds of the Preferential Issue from the objects stated in the explanatory statement of notice of general meeting. The 
proceeds of said issue have been fully utilized by the Company till the closures of financial year.  

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

A. Conservation of energy – 

i.) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:  

The company has taken various measures to minimize consumption of energy, to optimize productivity and also to conserve energy 

and making best use of the resources. A considerable amount of time and effort was earmarked for conserving power across all the 
manufacturing facilities. The Company continues its endeavor to improve energy conservation and utilization.  

ii.) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:  

The Company has continued its focus on energy conservation efforts through up-gradation of process with new technology. The 
technology installed by the Company has provided better results in quality and production and also reducing the overall cost of 
production and maintenance which effect production scheduling and various energy saving initiatives in all areas of production. 
However, the Company has installed 87 Kw Roof Top Solar PV system at factory of the company situated at Block No. 124-125, Plot 
No. 17/A, N. H. No. 8, Opp. Gupta Industries, Pipodara, Surat 394110, Gujarat. By this application, during the year, the Company has 
generated 82345 units from Solar Power Roof top by this way the Company become part of reducing carbon emission in the 

environment. 

iii.) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: INR 45,136.62 Hundred. 

B. Technology absorption – 

i.) The effort made towards technology absorption 

Your Company has been very thoughtful in installing new technology to reduce the production cost, improve yield, enhance product 
endurance and strengthen finish. However, no new technology has been installed by the Company during the year and all existing 
technology has been fully absorbed. 

ii.) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution 

The Company had installed such technology that improve productivity, quality and reduction in manual intervention and to enhance 
the quality and productivity. Improvement in manufacturing process helped the Company in managing production scheduling; & 
better & faster servicing of product for domestic as well as global market. 

iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) 

The details of technology imported The year of import Whether the 
technology has been 
fully absorbed: 

If not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has not taken place, 
and the reasons thereof 

Automatic Pillow Packing Machine and 
Double Twist Packing machine 

2023-24 Yes Not Applicable 

Jelly Depositor Sgdq600  2024-25 Yes Not Applicable 

High Speed Flow Wrapping Machine- 6 
Nos., Manual Flow Wrapping Machine- 
4 Nos., Vertical Packing Machine-3 Nos., 
FFS Machine/Multi Track Machine- 2 
Nos., Metal Detector Machine- 2 Nos., 
Fully Automatic Cartoon Packing 
Machine, Candy Depositor Sgdq300, 
Mesh Belt Dryer. 

2024-25 No The Company has imported 
technology during the end of the 
financial year, which is under 
installation and implementation 
stage at the end of year. 
Accordingly, the absorption of the 
said technology has not taken place 
till year end, and will be achieved 
upon completion of installation and 
stabilization in the forthcoming 
financial year.  

iv.) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: As above 

v.) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Since inception, we have placed a strong emphasis on developing our in-
house R&D abilities, which we believe, has been instrumental in our growth. We believe that our in-house R&D initiatives have 
resulted in the expansion of our product portfolio, maintaining the quality of our products and translating feedback received from 
customers, dealers and distributors into concrete results. Our research and development activities emphasize designing and 
developing new products keeping in mind market standards, customer requirements, cost of production and compliance with 
applicable standardization norms. Our R&D centre is located in our manufacturing facility at Pipodara, Gujarat. However, during the 
year under review, the Company has not incurred any Research and Development expenses. 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Expenditure - 
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i.) Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings 
(INR in Hundred) 

Sr. No. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

1. Exports of Goods calculated on F.O.B. basis - 47,012.99 

ii.) Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure 
(INR in Hundred)  

Sr. No. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

1. Import of Raw Material / Goods 6,46,873.92 39,515.77 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost records and audits) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required 
to maintain the cost records and accordingly the Company has not maintained the Cost record. 

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES 

The ratio of the remuneration of each executive director to the median of employees’ remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this 
Report as Annexure – C. 

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of employees as required under 
Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the Members 
excluding the aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is opened for inspection in electronic form. Any 
Member interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary. 

GENDER-WISE COMPOSITION OF EMPLOYEES: 

In alignment with the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI), the Company discloses below the gender composition of its 
workforce as on the March 31, 2025.  

 Male Employees: 25 
 

 Female Employees: 22 
 

 Transgender Employees: 0 

This disclosure reinforces the Company’s efforts to promote an inclusive workplace culture and equal opportunity for all individuals, 
regardless of gender. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT 

There have been no material changes and commitments for the likely impact affecting financial position, except allotment of 70500 equity 
shares on October 12, 2024 and 33000 Equity Shares on November 27, 2024 at Rs. 154.00/- each including Premium of Rs. 144.00/- upon 
conversion of Warrants into equity share by way of a preferential issue to persons other than the promoters and promoter group of the 
Company. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and 
Company’s operations in future. 

SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANY 

Tapi Wellness Private Limited was incorporated as subsidiary of the Company for carrying out business of Manufacturing, formulating, 
processing, developing, refining, importing, exporting, marketing, wholesale and/or retail trading of all kinds of neutraceuticals products, 
nutritions, minerals, pharmaceuticals, pro biotics, pre biotics, amino acid, biologicals, healthcare, ayurvedic, vitamins, foods supplements 
and dietary supplement products, medicinal preparations, vaccines, cordials, soups, broths and other restoratives or foods etc.  

Tapi Wellness Private Limited achieved turnover of INR 2,69,101.63 Hundred during financial year 2024-25. The Profit Before Tax stood at 
INR 20,049.65 Hundred making net profit for financial year 2024-25 of INR 14,074.04 Hundred. Tapi Wellness Private Limited has not 
declared any dividend for Financial Year 2024-25. The annual accounts of Tapi Wellness Private Limited has been consolidated with the 
accounts of the Company for Financial Year 2024-25.  

The financial performance of Subsidiary Companies in prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report as Annexure – D. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. However, pursuant to Regulation 15(2) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the 
provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and therefore the 
Company has not provided a separate report on Corporate Governance. 

However, Company is complying with few of the exempted regulations voluntarily and details of same are provided in this report under 
the respective heading. 

DESCLOSURE OF LARGE CORPORATE ENTITY 

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby confirm that the Company is not a Large Corporate entity in terms of Regulation 50B of SEBI 
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (NCS Regulations). 
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ONE TIME SETTLEMENT OF LOAN OBTAINED FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

During the year under review, the company has not entered into any one-time settlement with banks or financial institutions and 
accordingly, the provisions of the said section are not applicable. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk 
mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to 
mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles of probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried 
out to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage both business and non-business risks. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated completely, all efforts are made to minimize the impact of such 
risks on the operations of the Company. Necessary internal control systems are also put in place by the Company on various activities 
across the board to ensure that business operations are directed towards attaining the stated organizational objectives with optimum 
utilization of the resources. Apart from these internal control procedures, a well-defined and established system of internal audit is in 
operation to independently review and strengthen these control measures, which is carried out by an experience auditor. The audit is based 
on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutory auditor of the Company and the audit committee. 
The conduct of internal audit is oriented towards the review of internal controls and risks in its operations. 

The Internal Auditor of the Company carry out review of the internal control systems and procedures. The internal audit reports are 
reviewed by Audit Committee and Board. 

Your Company has also put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements commensurate with the 
size and nature of operations of the Company. During the year, such controls were tested and no material discrepancy or weakness in the 
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting was observed. 

LISTING FEES 

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the Company has paid 
the applicable listing fees to the Stock Exchange till date. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

In terms of Regulation 34, and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a review of the 
performance of the Company, for the year under review, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, is presented in a separate section 
forming part of this Annual Report. 

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 

M/s. Kansariwala & Chevli, Chartered Accountants, Surat (FRN: 123689W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of Company at the fourth 

Annual General Meeting held on July 4, 2022, for a term of five consecutive years. 

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any comments under 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The 

Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THIEIR REPORT 

The Company has appointed Mr. Praful N. Vekariya, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the 

financial year 2024-25, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for the 
financial year 2024-25 is annexed to this report as an Annexure – E.  

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark, accordingly, not require to comment up 

on by the Board of Directors.  

INTERNAL AUDITORS AND REPORT 

M/s. M R D and Co LLP, Chartered Accountant, Surat (FRN: W100922), is acting as Internal Auditors of the Company and has conducted 

periodic audit of all operations of the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed the findings of Internal 
Auditors regularly. 

REPORTING OF FRAUD 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

PROCEEDINGS INITIATED/PENDING AGAINST YOUR COMPANY UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 

2016 

There are no proceedings initiated/pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially 
impact the Business of the Company. 
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DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

Not Applicable, as of March 31, 2025, there were no Equity Shares lying in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account. 

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO ANY AGREEMENTS BINDING ON LISTED ENTITIES 

There are no agreements that require disclosure under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule III of the Listing Regulations. 

WEBSITE 

As per Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has maintained a functional website namely “www.tapifood.com” 
containing basic information about the Company. The website of the Company is also containing information like Policies, Shareholding 

Pattern, Financial Results and information of the designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling 

investor grievances for the benefit of all stakeholders of the Company, etc. 

INSURANCE 

The assets of your Company have been adequately insured. 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, 
have been duly complied by your Company. 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities by the 
Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and prohibits 
the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 
information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for 
implementation of the Code. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS (IR):  

The Company continues to maintain harmonious industrial relations. Company periodically reviews its HR policies and procedures to aid 
and improve the living standards of its employees, and to keep them motivated and involved with the larger interests of the organisation. 
The Company has systems and procedures in place to hear and resolve employees’ grievances in a timely manner, and provides avenues to 
its employees for their all-round development on professional and personal levels. All these measures aid employee satisfaction and 
involvement, resulting in good Industrial Relations. 

ENHANCING SHAREHOLDERS’ VALUE 

Your Company believes that its members are its most important stakeholders. Accordingly, your Company’s operations are commit ted to 
the pursuit of achieving high levels of operating performance and cost competitiveness, consolidating and building for growth, enhancing 
the productive asset and resource base and nurturing overall corporate reputation. Your Company is also committed to creating value for its 
other stakeholders by ensuring that its corporate actions positively impact the socioeconomic and environmental dimensions and contribute 
to sustainable growth and development. 

GENERAL DISCLOSURE 

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in section 134 (3) of the Act and Rule 8 of 
The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions of the act and listing regulations, to the extent the transactions took 
place on those items during the year.  

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contributions made by the employees at all levels through 
their dedication, hard work and commitment, enabling the Company to achieve good performance during the year under review.  

Your Directors also take this opportunity to place on record the valuable co-operation and support extended by the banks, government, 
business associates and the shareholders for their continued confidence reposed in the Company and look forward to having the same 
support in all future endeavors. 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers, 
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, 
Varachha Road, Surat-395006, Gujarat 
 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

Ghanshyam Lukhi       
Managing Director 

DIN: 06704416 

Ashokkumar Lukhi       
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 06704408 
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Annexure – A 

Disclosures under Regulation 14 of the SEBI (Share based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021 

Sr. No. Description of ESOP ESOP – 2023 

1.      (a) Date of shareholder’s approval May 30, 2023 

(b)  Total number of shares approved 1,00,000 

(c)  Vesting requirements All the options granted under the ESOP – 2023 would vest at the 

end of first year from the date of Grant of such Options. 

(d)  Option Granted 34,250 

(e)  Exercise price or pricing formula 40.00 

(f)  Maximum term of options granted All the options granted under the ESOP – 2023 would vest at the 

end of first year from the date of Grant of such Options. 

(g)  Source of shares Primary 

(h)  Variation of terms of options None 

2.  Method used to account for ESOP To calculate the employee compensation cost, the Company shall 
use the Intrinsic Value Method or Fair Value Method as per 
applicable Accounting Standards and other regulatory 
provisions for valuation of Stock Based Instruments granted. If 
Intrinsic Value Method is used the difference between the 
employee compensation cost so computed and the employee 
compensation cost that shall have been recognized if it had used 
the fair value of the Stock Based Instruments and the impact of 
this difference on profits and on Earnings Per Share (EPS) of the 
Company. 

3.  Where the Company opts for expensing of the options using 

the intrinsic value of the options, the difference between the 
employee compensation cost so computed and the 
employee compensation cost that shall have been 
recognized if it had used the fair value of the options shall 
be disclosed. The impact of this difference on the profits and 
EPS of the Company shall also be disclosed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Not Applicable (i) Difference between Intrinsic value and Fair value 

compensation cost 

(ii) Impact on the Profits of the Company 

(iii) Impact on Basic Earnings Per Share of the Company  

(iv) Impact on Diluted Earnings Per Share of the Company 

4.  Option movement during the year: 

(a) Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0 

(b)  Options issued during the year (pursuant to the Scheme) 34,250 

(c)  Options forfeited / lapsed during the year 0 

(d)  Options vested during the year 0 

(e)  Options exercised during the year 0 

(f)  Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option 0 

(g)  Money realised by exercise of options 0 

(h)  Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price 
received 

NA 

(i)  Options Outstanding at the end of the year 34,250 

(j)  Options Exercisable at the end of the year 0 
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Sr. No. Description of ESOP ESOP – 2023 

5A Weighted average exercise prices of outstanding options whose: 

 Exercise price equals market price of stock 0 

 Exercise price exceeds market price of stock 0 

 Exercise price is less than market price of stock 40.00 

5B Weighted average fair value of outstanding options whose: 

 Exercise price equals market price of stock 0 

 Exercise price exceeds market price of stock 0 

 Exercise price is less than market price of stock 98.00 

6 Grantee wise details of options granted to: 

 I. Key managerial personnel; a)  Kashyapkumar Nagjibhai Pandav (Company Secretary and 
Compliance officer) – 1500 options 

b) Dalsukhbhai Lavjibhai Lukhi (CFO) – 2500 options 

II. any other grantee who receives a grant in any 

one year of options amounting to five per cent 
or more of options granted during that year; 

 

None 

III. identified employees who were granted 

options, during any one year, equal to or 
exceeding one per cent of the issued capital 
(excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the issuer at the time of grant. 

 

None 

7 A description of the method and significant 
assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair 
values of options, including following weighted 
average information: 

 

 i. Share price  135.00 

 ii. Exercise price 40.00 

 iii. Expected volatility 44.30% 

 iv. Expected dividends 0.00% 

 v. Risk-free interest rate 7.12% 

 vi. Any other inputs to the model None 

 vii. Method used and the assumptions made to 
incorporate effects of expected early exercise 

Black Scholes Method 

 viii. How expected volatility was determined, 
including an explanation of the extent of to which 
expected volatility was based on historical 
volatility 

The expected volatility arrived based on the company equity shares 
volatility for a period of 1.1 years upto grant date of the options. 

 ix. Whether any or how any other features of option 
grant were incorporated into the measurement of 
fair value, such as market condition 

Not Applicable 

The Certificate of Secretarial Auditor in terms of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 12 of Companies (Share Capital  and 

Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021 is uploaded on 
the website of the Company at https://www.tapifood.com/pdf/Certificate_of_Secretarial_Auditor.pdf 

 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers, 
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, 
Varachha Road, Surat-395006, Gujarat 
 
 

Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

Ghanshyam Lukhi       
Managing Director 

DIN: 06704416 

Ashokkumar Lukhi       
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 06704408 



   

 

 

 

Annual Report 2024-25 | 18  

Annexure – B 

FORM NO. AOC-2 - PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS MADE 
WITHRELATED PARTIES 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

a) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to by the Company during the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, 
which were not at arm’s length basis. 

b) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

Name(s) of the related party 
and nature of relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of the 
contracts / 

arrangements/ 
transactions 

Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval 

by the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances, 
if any 

Tapi Wellness Private Limited,  

Subsidiary Company 

Purchase and 
Sales 

F. Y. 2024-25 Total Value of Transactions : 

i. Purchase: INR 27,978. 75 Hundred 
ii. Sales: INR 1,91,468.00 Hundred 

August 28, 
2023 & 
May 15, 
2024 

Nil 

Maalana Foods Private 

Limited, 

Mr. Naveen Anand (Non-

Executive Director) has control 
over Maalana Foods Private 
Limited 

Sales F. Y. 2024-25 Total Value of Transactions INR 1608.00 

Hundred 

August 28, 

2023 & 
May 15, 
2024 

Nil 

 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers, 
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, 
Varachha Road, Surat-395006, Gujarat 
 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

Ghanshyam Lukhi       
Managing Director 

DIN: 06704416 

Ashokkumar Lukhi       
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 06704408 
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Annexure – C 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

(Pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rules made thereunder) 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under  

Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under 

Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial year and the Percentage 
increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, 
in the financial year: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation 
Nature of 
Payment 

Ratio against median 
employee’s remuneration 

Percentage 
Increase 

1. Mr. Ghanshyam Lukhi Managing Director Remuneration 12.50 : 1.00 - 

2. Mr. Ashokkumar Lukhi Wholetime Director Remuneration 4.17 : 1.00 - 

3. Mr. Yash Lukhi Wholetime Director Remuneration 8.34 : 1.00 - 

4. Mr. Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable - 

5. Mr. Kamleshkumar Pandya Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable - 

6. Mrs. Rekha Shah Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable - 

7. Mr. Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Chief Financial Officer Salary Not Applicable 3.00% 

8. Mr. Kashyapkumar Pandav Company Secretary Salary Not Applicable 4.51% 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

The median remuneration of the employees in current financial year was increased by 4.28% over the previous financial year. 

c) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 47 Employees 

d) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

The Average salary was Increased by 25.49% whereas there was no change in average remuneration of the Executive Directors over the 
previous financial year. The increased in salary of Employees was as per Human Resource Policy of the Company.  

The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers, 
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, 
Varachha Road, Surat-395006, Gujarat 
 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

Ghanshyam Lukhi       
Managing Director 

DIN: 06704416 

Ashokkumar Lukhi       
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 06704408 
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Annexure – D 

FORM NO. AOC – 1 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries:         (INR in Hundred) 

Name of the Subsidiaries Tapi Wellness Private Limited 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting 
period 

Not Applicable.  

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries. 

Indian Rupees 

Share capital 1,000.00 

Reserves & surplus 21,542.32 

Total assets 50,213.51 

Total Liabilities 27,671.19 

Investments 0.00 

Turnover 2,69,101.63 

Profit before taxation 20,049.65 

Provision for taxation 59,75.61 

Profit after taxation 14,074.04 

Proposed Dividend Nil 

% of shareholding 80.00 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operation: Nil 

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures:  

The Company does not have any Associates and / or Joint Ventures and hence, information is not applicable. 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers, 
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, 
Varachha Road, Surat-395006, Gujarat 
 
 
 
 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

Ghanshyam Lukhi       
Managing Director 

DIN: 06704416 

Ashokkumar Lukhi       
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 06704408 

Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

Kashyapkumar Pandav 
Company Secretary 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Annexure – E 

FORM No. MR-3  

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

 [Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and  

Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers,  
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, Varachha Road,  
Surat-395006, Gujarat 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by Tapi Fruit Processing Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Tapi Fruit Processing Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit and the representations made by the Company, we hereby report that in our opinion,  the Company has, 
during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and maintained by Tapi 
Fruit Processing Limited for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

II. The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018;  

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021  

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Securitised Debt Instruments and Security Receipts) 
Regulations, 2008 (during the year under review not applicable to the Company); 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;  

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (during the year under review not 
applicable to the Company); and  

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations 2018 (during the year under review not 
applicable to the Company); 

VI. Other Applicable Acts, 

a. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, and rules made there under; 

b. The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and rules made there under; 

c. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013; 

d. Payment Of Wages Act, 1936, and rules made there under; 

e. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made there under; 

f. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;  
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g. The payment of Bonus Act, 1965; 

h. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; 

i. The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976; 

j. Factories Act, 1948; The Manufacturing division of Tapi Fruit Processing Limited is located at Plot No. B.No.124.125. P.No.17A 
N.H.8 PO.Pipodara Ta.: Mangrol Dist.: Surat, Gujarat. 

k. Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981; 

l. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; 

m. Hazardous and other Waste (Management and Trans Boundry Movement) Rules, 2016; 

n. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 read with The Manufacture, storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989; 

o. The Company has obtained consent/approval from Gujarat Pollution Control Board. 

p. The Company has obtained license from the Government of India, Food Safety and Standards Authority of India under the  
Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006  

q. The Company is having certification of ISO 22000: 2018. 

VII. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (The Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

I. Secretarial Standards of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 

II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE-SME Stock Exchange. 

During the year under review, the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations and guidelines ment ioned 
above. 

We further report that based on the information provided by the company, its officers and authorised representative during the conduct of 
the audit, and also on the review of reports by CS/MD/CFO of the company, in our opinion, adequate systems and processes and control 
mechanism exist in the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws. 

We further report that the compliance by the company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, has not  been reviewed 
in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals. 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for  meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the chairman, the decisions of the board were unanimous and no 
dissenting views were required to be recorded. 

We further report that as the Company has obtained approval from members by way of special resolution at Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on 30.05.2023 for Issue of Fully Convertible Equity Warrants of the Company on a preferential basis and for Tapi  Fruit 
Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 and accordingly during the audit period:  

- The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the company has granted 34250 options under Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - 
Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 on 03.06.2024 to the eligible employee of the company having a major bearing on the company’s 
affairs. 

- The company has issued/allotted 70500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 144/- aggregating to Rs. 1,08,57,000/- 
against conversion of 70500 warrants on 12.10.2024 having a major bearing on the company’s affairs. 

- The company has issued/allotted 33000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 144/- aggregating to Rs. 50,82,000/-, against 
conversion of 33000 warrants on 27.11.2024 having a major bearing on the company’s affairs. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis and the report provides not absolute but, reasonable assurance. 

 

Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

Praful N. Vekariya 
Company Secretary in Practice 

M. No. 21367      COP No. 10858 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 2075/2022 

UDIN: A021367G001102029  

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this report. 
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“Annexure - A” 

To, 
The Members, 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers,  
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, Varachha Road, 
Surat-395006, Gujarat 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

Place: Surat 
Date:  August 28, 2025 

Praful N. Vekariya 
Company Secretary in Practice 

M. No. 21367      COP No. 10858 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 2075/2022 

UDIN: A021367G001102029  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS & OUTLOOK 

Introduction 

The global macroeconomic landscape faces significant headwinds in the year ahead, characterized by decelerating growth, persistent 

geopolitical tensions, and a cautious recalibration of monetary policy. A key driver of this slowdown is the intensification of trade 
disputes—most notably, the implementation of U.S. tariffs, including a 10% baseline levy and elevated duties on Chinese imports. These 

measures have disrupted global trade flows, provoked retaliatory actions, and heightened policy uncertainty, collectively dampening 

investor confidence, curbing capital expenditures, and sustaining inflationary pressures.  

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) projects global GDP growth at 2.8% for 2025, slightly outpacing the World Bank’s estimate of 2.3%. 

While global inflation is expected to decline to 4.2%, the disinflationary trajectory will likely be uneven, with advanced economies on track 
to meet central bank targets ahead of their emerging market counterparts.  

Trade performance is expected to weaken significantly, with global trade volumes forecast to grow by just 1.7% in 2025—a notable drop 

from 3.8% in the prior year. This decline reflects the compounded effects of escalating trade restrictions and mounting policy ambiguity. As 
a result, stakeholders across the public and private sectors are closely monitoring developments in energy markets, global supply chains, 
and key international trade corridors. 

Indian economic review 

India's economic performance in FY25 has demonstrated resilience amid global uncertainties, with real GDP growth estimated between 

6.3% and 6.5%. This steady growth trajectory is underpinned by robust domestic demand, strategic public investments, and a rebound in 
key sectors.  

Deloitte's May 2025 outlook projects India's GDP growth in the range of 6.3% to 6.5% for FY25, with expectations of 6.5% to 6 .7% for FY26. 

This optimistic forecast is attributed to tax incentives boosting consumer spending and strong domestic demand. However, potential 

headwinds include global trade uncertainties and the impact of international tariff regimes.  

EY's assessment aligns with this outlook, projecting India's real GDP growth at 6.4% for FY25 and 6.5% for FY26. The firm emphasizes the 

importance of well-calibrated fiscal strategies that support human capital development while maintaining fiscal prudence to enhance long-

term growth prospects.  

On the supply side, the agriculture sector is projected to grow by 3.8%, bolstered by favorable monsoon conditions and enhanced 

productivity in horticulture, livestock, and fisheries. The industrial sector is expected to expand by 6.2%, supported by growth in 
construction activities and utilities. The services sector continues to be a significant contributor, maintaining its upward trajectory.  

Inflationary pressures have moderated, with retail headline inflation softening to 4.9% during April–December 2024. The Reserve Bank of 

India anticipates aligning consumer price inflation with the target of around 4% in FY26. Fiscal indicators remain robust, evidenced by an 
8.2% growth in capital expenditure between July and November 2024. Additionally, gross FDI inflows increased by 17.9% year-on-year, 
reaching USD 55.6 billion in the first eight months of FY25. Foreign exchange reserves stood at USD 640.3 billion as of December 2024, 

sufficient to cover 10.9 months of imports and approximately 90% of external debt.  

Looking ahead, India's economic prospects remain favorable, supported by structural reforms, infrastructure development, and a focus on 
self-reliance. The government's commitment to enhancing the manufacturing sector and fostering innovation positions the country for 

sustained growth, with aspirations to ascend to the position of the world's third-largest economy in the coming years. 

(Source -  https://www2.deloitte.com/us/en/insights/economy/asia-pacific/india-economic-outlook.html 

https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2113316 

https://www.ey.com/en_in/services/tax/india-economic-pulse) 

FOOD PROCESSING INDUSTRY 

The food processing industry in India has witnessed rapid growth in the recent past, with the sector emerging as one of the most promising 
industries driving the economic growth of the country. The food processing industry in India reached a value of US$ 336.4 billion in 2023 

and is expected to reach US$ 735.5 billion, at a CAGR of 8.8% during 2023-2032, Backed by changes in consumer lifestyle and preference, the 

demand for processed food has increased in the Indian market. These factors coupled with an increasing urban population and busy work 
schedules promote the consumption of RTE (ready-to-eat) meals and packaged foods. The Government of India's efforts to unclog 

regulatory bottlenecks toward ensuring ease of doing business have also encouraged an increasing number of new players into the market. 

This also gives the country a great opportunity to export food items. However, food processing products currently constitute only 16% of 
India's Agri-exports-the comparative figures for the US and China are 25% and 49%, respectively. This gap offers a tremendous chance for 
development, notably in processed fruits and vegetables and dairy sectors. 

Fruits Pulp  

The global fruit pulp industry has witnessed steady growth in the recent years. It will grow from $1.47 billion in2024 to $1.53 billion in 2025 
at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 3.5%. The fruit pulp market size is expected to see steady growth in the next few years. It will 
grow to $1.82 billion in 2029 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 4.5%. The increasing demand for pulp-based food products is 
expected to drive the growth of the fruit pulp market going forward. Pulp-based food products refer to processed food items in which fruit 
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or vegetable pulp is incorporated to enhance the natural flavour and taste of desired fruit and vegetable. In pulp-based food products, fruit 

pulp is utilized in the production of goods including jams, marmalades, jellies, candies, beverages, and flavourings that contain fruit. 

India is emerging as a prominent market for fruit and vegetable pulps, with the industry forecasted to increase by 203 billion at a CAGR of 

9% between 2024 and 2029. The fruit pulp market is experiencing significant growth due to several key trends. Firstly, the increasing 

urbanization and changing consumer lifestyle preferences towards healthier food options are driving market demand. Fruit pulp is used in 

a variety of applications, from beverages and cocktails to desserts and baked goods. Consumers are increasingly seeking out fruit pulp 

products for their health benefits, including calcium, zinc, and stress release, as well as immune system support, osteoporos is prevention, 

and hypertension reduction. As a result, fruit pulp is becoming an essential ingredient in many food and beverage offerings. Overall, the 
fruit pulp market is poised for continued growth, driven by consumer lifestyle trends and the health benefits associated with processed 

fruits.  

Some of the key factors fuelling the consumption of fruit and vegetable pulp globally includes: a widening application in food products, 

rising private label offerings, investments in pulp processing technology, and capacity expansions by leading players. Developed regions 

like North America and Europe are mature markets. The Asia-Pacific region and Latin America offer strong growth potential owing to rapid 

urbanisation, rising incomes, and an increasing middleclass population. Overall, the fruit and vegetable pulp sector is poised for a 

prosperous future globally backed by a strong health and wellness trend. 

(Source: https://www.thebusinessresearchcompany.com/report/fruit-pulp-global-market-report 

https://www.technavio.com/report/fruit-pulp-market-industry-in-india-analysis) 

Jellies and Gummies 

The global jellies & gummies market size was valued at USD 38.18 billion in 2024 and is projected to reach USD 47.65 billion by 2030, 

growing at a CAGR of 3.8% from 2025 to 2030. The market growth is attributable to the increasing consumer demand for convenience foods. 
With hectic schedules and busy lifestyles, consumers have increasingly sought quick and easy snack options, including jellies and gummies. 

These products are convenient and come in a wide range of flavors and forms that appeal to a broader range of consumers. Health 

consciousness among consumers is another major factor propelling the market.  

The market growth is attributed to growing vegan population, booming candy industry, rising awareness regarding the side effects of 

chocolate consumption, and increasing consumer spending. Jellies and gummies have been gaining an increasing traction among the 

consumers on account of their frequent purchases and growing consumption of candies over chocolate. Factors impacting the purchase 

decision of consumers include unique flavors, textures, candies design, shape, packaging, and sugar content. Snacking, personal rewards 

on-the-go, occasions, and holidays are the major reasons for the consumption of jellies and gummies. Candies are mostly popular among 

kids and they are the major target consumers for the candy makers. 

(Source: https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/jellies-gummies-market) 

Organic Food and Beverages 

The global organic food and beverage market is projected to grow from USD 314.1 million in 2025 to USD 1,066.4 million by 2035, 

registering a CAGR of 13%. The market expansion is being driven by rising health awareness, clean-label trends, and growing concerns over 

synthetic additives in food. Consumers are increasingly shifting toward chemical-free, non-GMO, and sustainably produced food and 

beverage options. Innovations in organic product formulations, eco-friendly packaging, and enhanced e-commerce access across urban and 

semi-urban regions further accelerate the demand. 

(Source: https://www.futuremarketinsights.com/reports/organic-food-and-beverages-market) 

Nutraceutical products 

The global nutraceuticals market size was estimated at USD 591.1 billion in 2024 and is projected to reach USD 919.1 billion by 2030, 

growing at a CAGR of 7.6% from 2025 to 2030. The aging global population, particularly in developed nations, is actively seeking solutions 

to maintain health and manage age-related conditions, leading to a surge in demand for supplements targeting joint health, cognitive 
function, and cardiovascular wellness. Simultaneously, rising rates of chronic diseases like obesity and diabetes are prompting individuals 

to adopt healthier lifestyles, including incorporating nutraceuticals into their daily routines. This proactive approach to health management 

is a key trend powering the industry forward. 

Consumers are increasingly scrutinizing ingredient lists, seeking clean labels, and opting for plant-based options. This aversion to synthetic 

ingredients and a desire for transparency is driving demand for nutraceuticals derived from natural sources, such as fruits, vegetables, 

herbs, and botanicals. Innovations in extraction and processing technologies are also playing a crucial role, enabling manufacturers to create 

more potent and bioavailable formulations from these natural ingredients. This trend extends beyond just ingredient sourcing and 

encompasses ethical and sustainable production practices, further shaping consumer choices. 

The increasing understanding of personalized nutrition and the role of gut health are also significant demand drivers. Consumers are 

moving away from a one-size-fits-all approach and are exploring nutraceuticals tailored to their individual needs based on factors like 

genetics, lifestyle, and health goals. The growing body of research highlighting the gut microbiome's influence on overall health has fueled 
demand for probiotics, prebiotics, and other gut-health-focused supplements. 

(Source: https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/nutraceuticals-market) 
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GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES 

 Providing financial assistance and fiscal incentives to develop common supply chain infrastructure including cold storage, packaging, 
logistics etc. to lower investment costs, increase viability, and ensure regulatory compliance. 

 PLI schemes to support the creation of infrastructure to encourage manufacturing champions based out of India. 

 The Mega Food Park Scheme would create integrated infrastructure for storing and processing requirements of the food processing 

industry. 

 The PM Formalisation of Micro Food Processing Enterprises scheme helps the small micro-units engaged in the food processing 
industry by providing a subsidy of 35% on project costs, up to a maximum of Rs. 10 lakh (US$ 11,980) per the Ministry of Food 

Processing Industries. 

 The government of India has liberalized the FDI norms to allow as high as 100% FDI in food products e-commerce through an 

automatic route issued by the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry. 

 Promoting processing clusters and strong linkages from farm to retail through measures like setting up Mega Food Parks with 

appropriate incentives. 

 Supporting the creation of services for R&D, testing, quality improvement, marketing etc., to enhance innovation, competitiveness, and 

eco-friendly packaging. 

 Assisting new and existing micro food enterprises through capital investment support along with strengthening linkages, common 

facilities, training etc., through the Pradhan Mantri Formalisation of Micro food Processing Enterprises (PMFME) scheme. 

 Supporting the setting up of new micro units and upgrading existing micro food processing units, through the PMFME scheme. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW OF TAPI 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited is thriving in the highly favorable business environment for the Indian food processing industry, capitalising 
on the increasing demand for processed fruits and vegetables. The company have a successful track record of over two decades in the 
Indian food industry which has enabled them to develop an effective business model with stringent control over processes, including raw 
ingredient procurement, manufacturing operations, inventory management across their large range of products and SKUs, management of 
distribution logistics across India, as well as managing deemed export sales. 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited unwavering commitment to sustainability and ethical manufacturing practices, differentiates it from the 
commoditised nature of this industry enabling it to become the preferred supplier to top brands globally. The Company actively embraces 
renewable energy, water conservation measures, and effective waste management initiatives, demonstrating its dedication to minimising its 
environmental footprint. 

The domestic candied fruits and jelly industry also experienced a year of robust growth. Some factors for this growth include the resurgence 
of out-of-home channels and pent-up demand driven by consumers returning to socialising along with increased outreach in rural 
electrification and increase of capacities by large brands. 

The Indian beverages industry presents significant growth opportunities in the future, driven by deeper penetration into rural markets, an 
expanding demographic profile, and a growing middle-class population. Furthermore, with the growth in per capita income, consumers are 
willing to spend more on premium and niche products. Urbanisation is also playing a significant role in the growth of the industry, as more 
people move to urban areas and have greater disposable income. 

The Company has implemented several strategic initiatives to enhance its operational excellence. 

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Products Description 

Candied, Crystallized and 
Glazed Fruit and Vegetable 
Products (“Candied Fruit”) 

These products are made out of 100% fruits and vegetables cooked in sugar syrup. Our products under this 

category includes tooty fruity, karonda cherry, amla candy. We sell these products under our brand “Tapi”, 
“MumMum” and “Boleto”. 

Fruit Bar, Jellies, Fruit Jam 
& Fruit Leathers (“Fruit 
Jellies”) 

A product made out of natural fruit pulps dried and shaped in to roll form or bar forms. Our products 

under this category includes mango fruit rolls, tamarind bars etc. These are fruit jellies made from sugar, 
glucose, pectin along with fruit pulps added with flavours and colors. Our products under this category 
includes jelly balls, fruit bears, fruit jelly pops, Jams, fruit katli and jelly cubes. Fruit Jam made from sugar, 
glucose, pectin along with fruit pulps added with flavours and colors.   

Chutney & Sauces In this category we sell Ketchup made from tomato paste under our brand “Tapi”. 

Beverages Under this category our product includes fruit crush and fruit syrups. Our Company recently reintroduced 
its fruit syrups under its new packaging, with added fruit content. 

Nutraceutical Products We manufacture herbal base nutraceutical products as gummies, fortified with minerals as a functional 
food. These products are available as multi vitamin gummies, etc. 
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

Tapi have placed a strong emphasis on developing their in-house R&D abilities, which, has been instrumental in company’s growth. Their 
in-house R&D initiatives have resulted in the expansion of company’s product portfolio, maintaining the quality of our products and 
translating feedback received from customers, dealers and distributors into concrete results. 

The research and development activities emphasize designing and developing new products keeping in mind market standards, customer 
requirements, cost of production and compliance with applicable standardization norms. 

OPPORTUNITIES 

 Growing Packaged Food and Beverage Consumption: Large and Expanding Indian Market 

 Rising urbanisation and changing consumption patterns 

 The growing emphasis on health and wellness among consumers has led to an increased demand for organic and plant-based foods. 

 International Market Expansion: Introducing Products to Cater to Indian Diaspora and Ethnic Food Aisles 

 Premium Product Development: Targeting Consumers Seeking High-Quality Offerings 

 Strengthening Supply Chain and Business Practices: Enhancing Operational Efficiency and Cost Reduction 

THREATS  

 High Tax Structure 

 Volatility in Commodity and Currency Rates: Led by inflationary pressures and mobility restrictions 

 Broad-Based Cost Pressures: Including commodity prices, input cost inflation, and freight challenges 

SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE & DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO 
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The company is primarily engaged in the business of FMCG product, which constitute a single reportable segment in accordance with Ind 
AS 108 – “Segment Reporting”. 

Financial Highlights INR In Hundred 

Particulars 

Standalone Consolidated 

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations 17,49,760.90 21,01,666.52 20,18,862.53 22,28,526.71 

Other Income 9,020.98 25,479.76 9,216.14 25,733.74 

Total Income 17,58,781.88 21,27,146.29 20,28,078.67 22,54,260.45 

Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 18,26,843.15 20,79,523.47 20,73,944.57 21,97,681.27 

Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax (68,061.28) 47,622.81 (45,865.90) 56,579.18 

Less: Depreciation 92,815.89 76,774.13 94,949.67 77,359.17 

Less: Finance Cost 9,383.15 5,913.85 9,395.10 5,919.65 

Profit Before Extraordinary & Exceptional Items and Tax  (1,70,260.31) (35,065.17) (1,50,210.67) (26,699.65) 

Less: Extraordinary & Exceptional Items (14,834.45) (10,975.26) (14,834.45) (10,975.26) 

Profit before tax (1,55,425.86) (24,089.91) (1,35,376.22) (15,724.39) 

Less: Current Tax - - 5,339.00 1,354.60 

Less: Earlier Years Tax - - 706.37 - 

Less: Deferred tax Liability (Asset) 1,801.78 1,103.38 1,732.02 1,168.54 

Profit after Tax (1,57,227.64) (25,193.29) (1,43,153.61) (18,247.53) 
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Financial Performance  

On Standalone Basis 

During the year under review, the revenue from operation of the Company was stood at INR 17,49,760.90 Hundred as against that  of INR 
21,01,666.52 Hundred for previous year. Revenue from operation of the Company was decreased by 16.74% over previous year. The revenue 
from operations of the Company is decreased due to complete closure of production for more than one month during the year, in order to 

facilitate the shifting of existing machinery and the installation of new machinery within the facility. 

Loss before Tax for the financial year 2024-25 stood at INR 1,55,425.86 Hundred as against Loss before Tax of INR 24,089.91 Hundred 

making the net loss of INR 1,57,227.64 Hundred for the financial year 2024-25 as against the net loss of INR 25,193.29 Hundred for the 
financial year 2023-24. Due to increase in raw material prices, other expenses and decrease in revenue from operation, the Company could 

not generate the requisite profit. 

The Board is making its continuous efforts for re-visiting the purchase policy of the Company and increasing the capacity utilization of 
manufacturing capacity. The company has expanded production capacity and production area for generating more revenue and prof it. The 

Management is also confident that the addition of new automated production and packing machinery would help in achieving a reduction 
in fixed costs, and that reduced manual intervention in production would lead the Company to generate profit in the coming years. 

Company has also added ⁠New profitable Products as well as expansion in nutraceutical products which will help in generating more 
revenue and profits.  

On Consolidated Basis 

The consolidated revenue from operation of the Company for financial year 2024-25 stood at INR 20,18,862.53 Hundred as against that of 
INR 22,28,526.71 Hundred for previous year. Loss before Tax for the financial year 2024-25 stood at INR 1,35,376.22 Hundred as compared 

to INR 15,724.39 Hundred for the previous financial year 2023-24.  The consolidated net loss of INR 1,43,153.61 Hundred for the financial 
year 2024-25 as compared to INR 18,247.53 Hundred for the previous financial year 2023-24. 

RISK AND CONCERNS 

The Company is exposed to various risks and uncertainties which may adversely impact its performance. The Company's future growth 

prospects and cash flow generation could be materially impacted by any of these risks or opportunities. The major risks as identified by the 
Company are demand-risks due to any resurgence in the COVID 19 pandemic, currency risk associated with imports, unfair competition, 
etc. The Company follows the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework to manage and mitigate such risks which is primarily based 

on the integrated framework for enterprise risk management and internal controls developed by the Company. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS (STANDALONE BASIS) 

Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 % Change Reason 

Debtors Turnover 12.74 times 13.10 times 2.75% - 

Inventory Turnover 8.87 times 11.05 times 19.73% Decrease in Sales 

Interest Coverage Ratio (5.67) Times 9.91 times (157.25) Decrease in EBITD 

Current Ratio 0.98 times 5.60 times 82.50% Increase in Current Liabilities 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.59: 1.00 0.16: 1.00 268.75% Increase in Total Debt 

Operating Profit Margin (%) (8.88%) (1.15%) 674.95% Decrease in PBT 

Net Profit Margin (%) (8.99%) (1.20%) 649.60% Decrease in Net Profit 

Return on Net Worth (13.97%) (2.77%) 404.44% Decrease in Net Profit after Tax 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS (CONSOLIDATED BASIS) 

Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 % Change Reason 

Debtors Turnover 14.44 times 13.87 times 4.11% - 

Inventory Turnover 10.17 times 11.66 times 12.78% Decrease in Sales 

Interest Coverage Ratio (3.30) times 11.41 times (128.94)% Decrease in EBITD 

Current Ratio 1.03 times 5.05 times 79.60% Decrease in Current Assets and Increase in Current 
Liabilities 

Debt Equity Ratio 0.58: 1.00 0.16: 1.00 262.50% Increase in Total Debt 
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Operating Profit Margin (%) (6.71%) (0.71%) 850.34% Decrease in PBT 

Net Profit Margin (%) (7.09%) (0.82%) 765.98% Decrease in Net Profit 

Return on Net Worth (12.55%) (2.00%) 528.74% Decrease in Net profit after tax 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Internal Control system and adequacy Internal Control measures and systems are established to ensure the correctness of the transactions 

and safe guarding of the assets. Thus, internal control is an integral component of risk management. The Internal control checks and internal 
audit programmes adopted by the Company plays an important role in the risk management feedback loop, in which the information 

generated in the internal control process is reported back to the Board and Management. The internal control systems are modified 
continuously to meet the dynamic change. Further the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the internal audit reports and the 

adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE 
EMPLOYED 

The Company believes in establishing and building a strong performance and competency driven culture amongst its employees with 
greater sense of accountability and responsibility. The Company has taken various steps for strengthening organizational competency 

through the involvement and development of employees as well as installing effective systems for improving their productivity and 

accountability at functional levels. The Company acknowledges that its principal asset is its employees. Ongoing in-house and external 

training is provided to the employees at all levels to update their knowledge and upgrade their skills and abilities. As on March 31, 2025, the 

Company had total 47 full time employees. The industrial relations have remained harmonious throughout the year. 

CAUTIONARY NOTE 

Statements in this Report, describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may constitute 'forward looking 
statements' within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Forward looking statements are based on certain assumptions and 
expectations of future events. These statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties. The Company cannot guarantee that these 

assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized. The actual results may be different from those expressed or implied since the 
Company's operations are affected by many external and internal factors, which are beyond the control of the management. Hence the 

Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward-looking statements that may be amended or modified in future on the basis of 

subsequent developments, information or events. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON  

   STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

To the Members of  

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tapi Fruit Processing Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit 
and cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis of opinion 

We conducted our audit of standalone financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the 
responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report, 
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements. 

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

1. Revenue Recognition - Refer Note B(II) to the 
accompanying standalone financial statements: 

The revenue of the Company consists primarily of sale of 
food products that are sold through distributors, modern 
trade and direct sale channels amongst others.  

Revenue is recognized when the control of products is 
transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled 
obligation.  

Owing to the volume of sales transactions, size of the 
distribution network and varied terms of contracts with 
customers, revenue is determined to be an area involving 
significant risk in line with the requirements of the Standards 
on Auditing and hence, requiring significant auditor 
attention. 

Principal Audit Procedures 

Our key audit procedures around revenue recognition 
included, but were not limited to, the following: 

 Assessed the appropriateness of the revenue recognition 
accounting policies of the Company including those 
relating to rebates and trade discounts, by evaluating 
compliance with the applicable accounting standards. 

 Evaluated the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with respect to 
revenue recognition including general and specific 
information technology controls. 

 Performed substantive testing on selected samples of 
revenue transactions recorded during the year by testing 
the underlying documents including contracts, invoices, 
goods dispatch notes, shipping documents and customer 
receipts, wherever applicable. 

 Understood and evaluated the Company’s process for 
recording of the accruals for discounts and rebates and 
ongoing incentive schemes and on a test basis, verified the 
year-end provisions made in respect of such schemes. 
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not  include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,  in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 

to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 

of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout  the audit. 

We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,  design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
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quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of  our work; and (ii) 

to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 

audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 “(the Order) issued by the central government of India in terms of sub-

section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 

account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 

of the Act; 

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and 

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

II.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeable losses. 

III.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

IV.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to 

the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to 

the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall directly 

or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above, contain 

any material misstatement. 
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V.  The company has not declared any dividend during the year. 

VI.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 

books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout 
the year for all transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

The audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

  
 

For Kansariwala & Chevli  
Chartered Accountants  

 
 
 

Date:  May 08, 2025 
Place: Surat  

CA A.H.Chevli 
Partner 

Membership No. 038259 
Firm Reg. No. 123689W 

UDIN: 25038259BMIFJD8182 
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ANNEXURE - A  

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
(Referred to Para 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members 

of Tapi Fruit Processing Limited for the year ended 31st March,2025) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the management of the Company and the books  of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that: 

1.  a)  A.  The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of its 

Property, Plant and Equipment. 

  B.  The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

 b)  As explained to us, Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner over a 
period of three years, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the program, certain items of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by the Management 
during the year, and no material discrepancies between the book records and the physical assets were noticed on such 
verification. 

 c)  The title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

 d)  The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

 e)  As explained to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property 

under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

2.  a)  Physical verification of inventories has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management during the year. In our 

opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more 
in aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on verification between physical stock and book records. 

 b)  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, this clause of the order is not applicable. 

3.  The Company has not made investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, hence clause 3(iii)(a) to 
clause 3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

4.  The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, 

investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable. 

5.  The company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the act and the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(v) of the order are not applicable. 

6.  The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of 
Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

7.  a)  In our opinion, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident 
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any 
other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. There were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2025 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

b)  There are no amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and service tax, sales tax, customs duty and 
excise duty etc. on accounts of any disputes. 

8.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 which have not been recorded in the books of account. 

9.  a)  The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. 

 b)  The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

 c)  The term loans taken during the year and outstanding term loan at the beginning of the year have been applied for the purposes 
for which those were obtained. 

 d)  On an overall examination of financial statements of the company, funds raised on short-term basis have not been utilised for 
long term purposes. 

 e)  The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

 f)  The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. 

10.  a)  The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer during the year, hence reporting under 
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clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable. 

 b)  During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the requirements of section 62 of the companies act, 2013 have been duly complied with and the fund 
raised have been used for the purposes for which the fund were raised. 

The company has not made private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year. 

11.  a)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to us, we have neither come across 
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

 b)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanation given to us, a report under Section 143(12) 
of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed 
with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 c)  As represented to us by the management, the Company has not received any whistle-blower complaint during the year and upto 
the date of this report. 

12.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

13.  In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 a nd the 
details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14.  a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system as 
required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

 b)  We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company for the period under audit. 

15.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

16.  a)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 b)  The Company has not conducted any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year. 

 c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b) and 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

17.  The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 40,45,427/- during the financial year covered by our audit. The company has not incurred 
cash losses during the immediately preceding financial year. 

18.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the Company during the year. 

19.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial l iabilities, other 

information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on 
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe tha t any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.  

20.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of 
the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

  
For Kansariwala & Chevli  

Chartered Accountants  
 
 
 

Date:  May 08, 2025 
Place: Surat  

CA A.H.Chevli 
Partner 

Membership No. 038259 
Firm Reg. No. 123689W 

UDIN: 25038259BMIFJD8182 
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ANNEXURE - B  

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tapi Fruit Processing Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 
2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating ef fectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;  

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; 

(b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

  
For Kansariwala & Chevli  

Chartered Accountants  
 
 
 

Date:  May 08, 2025 
Place: Surat  

CA A.H.Chevli 
Partner 

Membership No. 038259 
Firm Reg. No. 123689W 

UDIN: 25038259BMIFJD8182 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2025 INR in Hundred 

 Particulars Note No. As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

I Equity & Liabilities    

1 Shareholders Fund    

(a) Share Capital C.1 4,27,300.00 4,16,950.00 

(b) Reserve and Surplus C.2 7,56,390.30 7,36,970.94 

 (c) Money received against share Warrants  - 76,807.50 

   11,83,690.30 12,30,728.44 

2 Share application money pending allotment  - - 

3 Non-Current Liabilities    

(a) Long-term borrowings C.3 5,05,223.78 73,541.69 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities  - - 

(c) Other Long-term Liabilities C.4 5,000.00 5,000.00 

(d) Long-term Provision  - - 

   5,10,223.78 78,541.69 

4 Current Liabilities    

(a) Short-term Borrowings C.5 1,73,998.36 1,02,455.83 

(b) Trade Payables C.6 2,14,987.98 3,945.48 

(c) Other current Liabilities C.7 44,903.75 49,866.01 

(d) Short-term Provisions C.8 1,286.13 160.49 

   4,35,176.21 1,56,427.80 

 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES  21,29,090.29 14,65,697.94 
     

II Assets    

1 Non - Current Assets    

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets    

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment (Net of Depreciation) C.9 6,35,982.44 4,97,007.14 

 (ii) Intangible Assets (Net of Depreciation)   -     -    

 (iii) Capital Work in Progress C.10 10,61,491.37 87,075.65 

   16,97,473.81 5,84,082.79 

(b) Non-Current Investment C.11 1,900.69 1,833.94 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets  1,388.10 3,189.88 

(d) Long term loans and advances   -     -    

(e) Other non-current assets   -     -    

   17,00,762.60 5,89,106.61 

2 Current Assets    

(a) Current investments C.12  -    34,957.44 

(b) Inventories C.13 2,06,220.32 1,88,356.15 

(c) Trade receivables C.14 1,38,133.24 1,36,475.76 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents C.15 4,011.03 35,0705.00 

(e) Short-term loans and advances   -     -    

(f) Other current assets C.16 79,963.11 1,66,096.97 

   4,28,327.69 8,76,591.32 

 TOTAL ASSETS  21,29,090.29 14,65,697.94 

 As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 

  
  

Chartered Accountants  
  

  
Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar lukhi 

 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 

  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A.H.Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJD8182 

 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

 
 

   

Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 
 

Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 INR in Hundred 

 
Particulars Note No. 

For the year ended March 
31, 2025 

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

I Income:    

(a) Revenue from Operation C.17 17,49,760.90 21,01,666.52 

(b) Other Income C.18 9,020.98 25,479.76 

 Total:  Revenue (I)  17,58,781.88 21,27,146.29 

II Expenses:    

(a) Cost of materials consumed C.19 13,06,499.51 14,71,826.36 

(c) Increase / Decrease in Stock C.20 (971.42) 5,114.02  

(c) Purchase of stock in Trade   -     -    

(d) Employee Benefit Expenses C.21 1,70,902.66 1,88,386.41 

(e) Other Expenses C.22 3,50,412.41 4,14,196.69 

 Total: Expenses (II)  18,26,843.15 20,79,523.47 

III Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortization (EBITDA) (I) - (II) 

 (68,061.28) 47,622.81 

(a) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses C.23 92,815.89 76,774.13 

(b) Financial Costs C.24 9,383.15 5,913.85 

IV Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  (1,70,260.31) (35,065.17) 

 Exceptional Items: -    

 Extraordinary items & Exceptional Items C.25 14,834.45 10,975.26 

IV Profit before tax  (1,55,425.86) (24,089.91) 

VII Tax Expenses:    

 Current Tax  - - 

 Earlier Years Tax  - - 

 Mat Credit Availed  - - 

 Deferred Tax  (1,801.78) (1,103.38) 

VIII Profit/(Loss) for the period (VI + VII)  (1,57,227.64) (25,193.29) 

IX Earnings Per Share    

 Basic   (3.73) (0.61)  

 Diluted  (3.66) (0.60) 
  

As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 

  
  

Chartered Accountants  
  

  
Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar lukhi 

 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 

  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A.H.Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJD8182 

 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 
 

Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 INR in Hundred 

 
Particulars 

 For the year ended March 
31, 2025 

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

A Cash flow from operating activity    
 Net profit/ (Loss) before tax  (1,55,425.86)  (24,089.91) 
 Adjustments for:    

 Finance Cost  9,383.15  5,913.85  

 (Profit)/ Loss on sale of Assets    (14,834.45)  (10,975.26) 

 ESOP Expense  27,607.01 - 

 Depreciation & Amortisation of Expenses    92,815.89  76,774.13  

 Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes (i) (40,454.27) 47,622.81 

 changes in working capital    

 Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:    

 Inventories   (17,864.17) 3,650.24 

 Trade Receivables   (1,657.47) 47,827.97 

 Short-term loans and advances   -    - 

 Other Current Assets   86,133.86  (45,798.96) 

 Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating 
liabilities: 

   

 Trade Payables   2,11,042.50  (1,16,107.90) 

 Other Current Liabilities   (4,962.26) 39,868.18 

 Short-term provisions   1,125.64  60.49 

 Net increase/(Decrease) in working capital (ii) 2,73,818.09 (70,499.98) 

 Cash generated from operations (i) - (ii) 2,33,363.82 (22,877.17) 

 (Less)    

 Income Tax paid during the year  - - 

 Net Cash inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activity 1 2,33,363.82 (22,877.17) 

B Cash flow from investing activity    

 Add/(Less)    

 Addition to Fixed Assets (Net of revaluation Reserve)   (12,12,382.46) (2,66,108.83) 

 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets   21,010.00  21,220.00 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Non-Current Investments   (66.75) 158.58 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets/ Non-
Current Assets 

  -    - 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Current Investments   34,957.44  15,867.12 

 Purchase of Shares of subsidiary company   -    - 

 Net Cash Inflow (outflow) from Investing Activity 2 (11,56,481.77) (2,28,863.14)) 

C Cash flow from financing activity    
 Add/(Less)    

 Proceeds from equity share capital (Including Security 
Premium) 

  82,582.50  4,71,047.50 

 Proceeds from long-term borrowings   5,21,828.27  81,468.86 

 Repayment of borrowings   (5,228.98) (45,625.52) 

 Proceeds from other short-term borrowings   (13,374.66) 97,180.37 

 Finance cost   (9,383.15) (5,913.85) 

 Net Cash Inflow /(Outflow) from Financing Activity 3 5,76,423.98 5,98,157.36 

 Net Change in Cash & Cash Equivalent (1+2+3) (3,46,693.97) 3,46,417.05 

 Cash & Cash Equivalent -Opening Balances  3,50,705.00 4,287.95 

 Cash & Cash Equivalent - Closing Balances  4,011.03 3,50,705.00 
 

As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 

  
  

Chartered Accountants  
  

  
Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar lukhi 

 
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 

  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A.H.Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJD8182 

 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 
 

Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

NOTE A. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited is a public limited company incorporated under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is 

engaged in manufacturing and selling of Jam and Jelly based products. 

NOTE B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(I) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India including the 

Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain Fixed Assets,  which 

are carried at revalued amounts. 

(II) REVENUE RECOGNITION: 

Revenue is recognized when the control of products is transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation. 

(III) INVENTORIES: 

Raw materials are valued at cost and finished goods are valued at cost or market value whichever is lower. 

(IV) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: 

The company has valued its property, plant and equipment at historical cost less depreciation on WDV method. 

Depreciation is provided based on useful life on of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

(V) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as short-term employee benefits. 

Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognized as actual amounts due in the period in which employee renders the 

related services. 

The Company contributes towards Provident Fund and ESIC. The Company does not have any gratuity fund and to that extent the 

requirements of AS 15 which deals with  the Accounting for Retirement Benefits in the Financial Statements of Employees are not 

applicable to the company. 

(VI) TAXES ON INCOME:            

Current Tax is determinate as the amounts of tax payable to the taxation authorities in respect of taxable income for the period. 

For the purpose of determining deferred tax assets in current financial year, the WDV of property, plant and equipment for 

accounting purposes and for tax purposes are compared and the differences is charged to the profit and loss account, subject to the 

consideration of prudence. 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Note C.1:  SHARE CAPITAL INR in Hundred 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(a) Authorised   

50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10.00 each 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00 

(Previous Year 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)   

 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00 

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up   

42,73,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,27,300.00 4,16,950.00 

(Previous Year 41,69,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)   

TOTAL 4,27,300.00 4,16,950.00 

 

(c) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding 

Particulars 

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

No. of 
Shares 

INR in 
Hundreds 

No. of 
Shares 

INR in 
Hundreds 

Shares Outstanding at the beginning 4169500 4,16,950.00 3913500 3,91,350.00 

Add: Bonus Share issued during the year  -     -    - - 

Add: Share issued during the year 103500 10,350.00 256000 25,600.00 

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 4273000 4,27,300.00 4169500 4,16,950.00 

 

(d) Terms attached to Equity Shares 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The company has not declared any dividend during the year.       

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
       

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company  

Particulars 

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Holding 

Ghanshyambhai Laljibhai Lukhi 1672647 39.14% 1672647 40.12% 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi 1133853 26.54% 1133853 27.19% 

 

(f) Shareholding of Promoters/ Promoter Group 

Name of Promoters and Promoter Group 

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 % 
Changes 

during the 
Year 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Holding 

Ghanshyambhai Laljibhai Lukhi (Promoter) 1672647 39.14% 1672647 40.12% -0.97% 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (Promoter) 1133853 26.54% 1133853 27.19% -0.66% 

Sweta Ashokkumar Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Ushaben Ghanshyambhai Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Laljibhai Shamjibhai Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 2826500 66.15% 2826500 67.79% -1.64% 
 

(g) Details of number and amount of shares issued in last five (5) years without payment in cash, bonus, buyback of shares, forfeited 
shares: 

(i) Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares 

Particulars 
Aggregate number of 

shares issued in 5 years 
Bonus share issued 
during F.Y. 2024-25 

Bonus share issued 
during F.Y. 2023-24 

Bonus share issued 
during F.Y. 2022-23 

Equity shares allotted as fully paid 
bonus shares 

2077500 - - 2077500 

TOTAL 2077500 - - 2077500 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Note C.2:  RESERVES & SURPLUS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(i) Profit and Loss Account   

Opening Balance (44,349.06) (19,155.77) 

Less: Bonus Share issued during the year  -     -    

 (44,349.06) (19,155.77) 

Profit transferred from Profit & Loss a/c (1,57,227.64) (25,193.29) 

Closing Balance (2,01,576.71) (44,349.06) 

(ii) Securities Premium Account   

Opening Balance 7,81,320.00 4,12,680.00 

Add: Addition During the Year 1,49,040.00 3,68,640.00 

 9,30,360.00 7,81,320.00 

Less: Bonus Share issued during the year  -     -    

Closing Balance 9,30,360.00  7,81,320.00  

(iii) ESOP Outstanding Reserve   

Opening Balance - - 

Add : Addition During the Year 27,607.01 - 

 27,607.01 - 

Less : Share issued during the year - - 

Closing Balance 27,607.01 - 

TOTAL 7,56,390.30 7,36,970.94 

 

Note C.3:  LONG TERM BORROWING INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Term Loans (Secured) 5,95,180.83 78,581.55 

Less: Current Maturity of Long-Term Borrowings (89,957.05) (5,039.86) 

TOTAL 5,05,223.78 73,541.69 

 

Name of 
Lender 

Purpose 
Sanctioned 

Amount (INR 
in Hundreds) 

Rate of 
Interest 

Securities Offered Re-payment schedule 
Outstanding as on 

March 31, 2024 (INR in 
Hundreds) 

Indian Bank Purchase of 
Plant & 

Machinery 

4,08,000.00 Repo + 
2.70% 

Hypothecation of 
Plant & Machinery 

Payable in 72 Principal 
Installment of Rs. 

807533/- 

4,11,113.23 

Indian Bank Construction of 
Factory Building 

4,45,000.00 Repo + 
2.70% 

Equitable 
Mortgage of 

Factory Building 

Payable in 72 Principal 
Installment of Rs. 

310742/- 

1,56,183.89 

BOB 
Vehicle 

Loan 

Purchase of 
Vehicle 

36,000.00 MCLR + 
0.00% 

Hypothecation of 
Vehicle 

Payable in 72 Principal 
Installment of Rs. 

64357/- 

27,883.71 

TOTAL 5,95,180.83 

The Term Loans are guaranteed by directors of the company. 

 

Note C.4:  OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Security Deposits from Customers( Unsecured) 5,000.00 5,000.00 

TOTAL 5,000.00 5,000.00 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Note C.5:  SHORT TERM BORROWING (SECURED) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Loan Payable on demand    

     Cash Credit - Indian Bank 83,957.10 96,799.80 

     Credit Card - Bank of Baroda 84.20 616.17 

Current Maturity of Long-Term Borrowings 89,957.05 5,039.86 

TOTAL 1,73,998.36 1,02,455.83 

Cash Credit Limits from Banks is secured by way of hypothecation of inventories and book debts and charge over fixed assets of the 
company and personal guarantee of two directors .The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest Repo+2.70% p.a. Credit 
facilities from Indian Bank are also personally guaranteed by Directors of the company. 

Note C.6:  TRADE PAYABLES (UNSECURED) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

2,14,987.98 3,945.48 

TOTAL 2,14,987.98 3,945.48 

Note : The company has not receive any intimation from the suppliers regarding status under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Developments Act, 2006 for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 and hence disclosure regarding these provision shall not be made. 

TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2024-25 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not due 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

i MSME - - - - - - 

ii Others 2,14,987.98 - - - - 2,14,987.98 

iii Disputed dues – MSME - - - - - - 

iv Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 

TOTAL 2,14,987.98 - - - - 2,14,987.98 

 

TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2023-24 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not due 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

i MSME - - - - - - 

ii Others 3,945.48 - - - - 3,945.48 

iii Disputed dues – MSME - - - - - - 

iv Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 

TOTAL 3,945.48 - - - - 3,945.48 

 

Note C.7:  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (UNSECURED) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Statutory Dues 1,908.53 16,993.10 

Advance from Customers 39,597.17 32,520.32 

Credit Card Bill Payable 3,398.05 352.59 

TOTAL 44,903.75 49,866.01 

Note C.8:  SHORT TERM PROVISION INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Provision for Expenses 1,286.13 160.49 

Provision for Income Tax - - 

TOTAL 1,286.13 160.49 
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Notes: 

A. Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. All the pre operative expenses including financial costs incurred 
till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized in proportion to the value of assets. 

B. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) Method. 
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Note C.10:  CAPITAL-WORK-IN PROGRESS (CWIP)  

CWIP ageing schedule for F.Y.2024-25          INR in Hundreds 

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Projects in Progress 9,74,415.72 87,075.65 - - 10,61,491.37 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

 

CWIP ageing schedule for F.Y.2023-24 

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Projects in Progress 87,075.65 - - - 87,075.65 

Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

 

Note C.11:  NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Fixed Deposit at KRBC Division 1,100.69 1,033.94 

Investment in share of subsidiary company 800.00 800.00 

TOTAL 1,900.69 1,833.94 

 
Note C.12:  CURRENT INVESTMENTS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Liqui Loans - 34,957.44 

TOTAL - 34,957.44 

 

Note C.13:  INVENTORIES (As taken, valued and certified by the Management) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Raw Material 1,85,263.78 1,68,371.03 

Work-in-Progress 8,852.40 9,356.72 

Finished Goods 12,104.14 10,628.40 

TOTAL 2,06,220.32 1,88,356.15 

 

Note C.14:  TRADE RECEIVABLES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)   

Exceeding Six Months 254.72 191.09 

others 1,37,878.52 1,36,284.67 

TOTAL 1,38,133.24 1,36,475.76 

 

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2024-25 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of  
payment 

Total 
Less than 
6 months 

6 months - 
1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

i Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good 

1,37,805.39 73.13 126.29 26.41 102.02  -    1,38,133.24 

ii Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
considered doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

iii Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good 

- - - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 1,37,805.39 73.13 126.29 26.41 102.02  -    1,38,133.24 
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2023-24 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of  
payment 

Total 
Less than 
6 months 

6 months - 
1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

i Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good 

1,23,787.78  12,496.89 89.07  -    102.02  -    1,36,475.76 

ii Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
considered doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

iii Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good 

- - - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 1,23,787.78  12,496.89 89.07  -    102.02  -    1,36,475.76 

 

Note C.15:  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Cash on hand 754.18 1,001.47 

Balances with Banks in current accounts 3,256.85 3,49,703.53 

TOTAL 4,011.03 3,50,705.00 

 

Note C.16:  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)   

Advance to Supplier 23,990.95 92,450.76 

Advance to Others 1,100.00 1,100.00 

Security Deposits 6,493.62 5,993.62 

Pre-Paid Expenses 778.32 726.38 

Advance Salary to Workers and Staff 3,525.00 4,800.00 

GST ITC Receivable 9,335.45 - 

IPO Expenses not written off 34,678.33 51,386.49 

Advance Tax, TDS, TCS 61.44 9,639.72 

TOTAL 79,963.11 1,66,096.97 

 

Note C.17:  REVENUE FROM OPERATION INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Sales 17,49,760.90 21,01,293.64 

Product Trial income - 372.88 

TOTAL 17,49,760.90 21,01,666.52 

 

Note C.18:  OTHER INCOME INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Incentive - Drawback  -    80.90 

Interest on Fixed Deposit 66.75 15,557.02 

Interest on Security Deposit - DGVCL 784.84 - 

Interest Subsidy Received  -    4,976.93 

Other Subsidy Received 109.39 1,011.69 

Interest from Liqui Loan 529.20 2,781.97 

Capital Gain from Sale of Mutual Funds 7,135.06 793.49 

Interest on I.T.Refund 368.81 136.10 

Exchange Rate Difference 26.94 141.67 

TOTAL 9,020.98 25,479.76 
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Note C.19:  COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Stock at the beginning of the year 1,68,371.03 1,66,907.25 

Add: Purchases during the year 13,23,264.26 14,89,921.43 

Less: Purchase Returns during the year  -    (15,454.79) 

Less: Rate Difference 128.00  (1,176.50) 

Less: Stock at the end of the year (1,85,263.78) (1,68,371.03) 

TOTAL 13,06,499.51 14,71,826.36 

 

Note C.20:  INCREASE / DECREASE IN STOCK INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Stock at the end of the year   

Finished Goods 12,104.14 10,628.40 

Work-in-progress 8,852.40 9,356.72 

 20,956.54 19,985.12 

Stock at the beginning of the year   

Finished Goods 10,628.40 16,975.70 

Work-in-progress 9,356.72 8,123.44 

 19,985.12 25,099.14 

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCK 971.42 (5,114.02) 

 

Note C.21:  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Director's Remuneration 36,000.00 36,000.00 

Salaries & Wages 1,29,033.68 1,44,680.95 

Contributors to PF & ESI 5,868.98 7,705.46 

TOTAL 1,70,902.66 1,88,386.41 

 

Note C.22:  OTHER EXPENSES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Manufacturing Expenses   

Carriage inward Expense 7,098.85 9,718.74 

Claim, Rebate and Rate Difference Expenses 36.02 53.90 

Clearing and Forwarding Charges  -    1,503.66 

Custom Duty  -    2.77 

Factory Expense 8,647.38 12,081.57 

GST Tax Paid 17.56 - 

Machinery Repairing Expense 20,269.82 27,589.89 

Packing Charges 56,633.00 78,254.00 

Power and Fuel Expense 23,273.22 41,367.68 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 
Note C.22:  OTHER EXPENSES (Continued) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Selling, Administrative & General Expenses   

Advertisement 2,673.46 3,540.22 

Amortisation of IPO Expenses and Preferential Issue 16,708.16 17,422.45 

Audit Fees 1,100.00 1,100.00 

Bad Debt 229.04 120.77 

Canteen Expense 3,748.02 3,965.22 

Carriage Outward Expenses 1,09,358.75 1,32,264.78 

Commission Expenses 3,465.23 3,691.82 

Compounding Fees  -    200.00 

Courier and Postage Charges 1,392.00 897.06 

Discount Expenses  -    1,807.29 

ESOP Expense 27,607.01 - 

Film Development Expense 225.00 - 

Godown Rent 560.00 840.00 

GST ITC Lapse 117.43 59.49 

HT Connection Charges  -    - 

Insurance Expenses 2,848.11 2,352.80 

Interest on Custom Duty 2.28 2.40 

Interest on Late Payment of GST 28.80 1.39 

Interest on Late Payment of TDS/TCS 170.84 89.71 

Interest on Income Tax  -    - 

Internet Expenses 98.44 173.96 

Lab Testing Fees 315.00 395.00 

Late Fees on GST  -    3.00 

Legal and Professional Charges 12,738.38 29,777.67 

Loading and Unloading Charges 1,112.60 908.50 

Marketing Expense 8,356.57 12,261.78 
Membership Fees 150.00 560.00 

Mehsul Expense  -    103.68 

Miscellaneous Expenses 421.78 8.81 

Online Sales Commission Expense  -    4.47 

Online Sales Shipping and Other Expenses 1,043.90 720.04 

Packing Design Expenses  -    400.00 

Preservation Charges 110.89 255.39 

Property Tax 195.06 496.75 

Retail Shop Rent 1,482.00 - 

Retail Shop Expense 534.70 - 

ROC Challan 60.00 161.02 

Round off (0.01) 0.01 

Sales Promotion Expenses 1,066.63 - 

Sitting Fees 780.00 1,020.00 

Software Renewal Charges  -    108.00 
Sponser Bank Fees  -    600.00 

Stall Service Charges 4,125.88 3,010.56 

Stationery and Printing Expenses 3,200.82 799.26 

Tea and Refreshment Expenses 4,097.24 4,948.92 

Telephone Expenses 646.31 438.38 

Travelling Expenses 15,773.82 9,278.95 

Vatav/ Kasar 33.06 (125.27) 
Vehicle Expenses 7,467.17 8,960.21 

Website Development Expense 392.23 - 

TOTAL 3,50,412.41 4,14,196.69 

INR in Hundreds 

Remuneration to Auditors: 
For the year ended on 

March 31, 2025 
For the year ended on 

March 31, 2024 

Statutory Audit Fees 1,100.00 1,100.00 

Tax Audit Fees - - 

Taxation Matter Fees - - 

TOTAL 1,100.00 1,100.00 
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Note C.23:  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets (SEE Notes C.9) 92,815.89 76,774.13 

Preliminary Expenses Written off  -    - 

 92,815.89 76,774.13 

Less: Withdrawal from revaluation reserve on account of extra  -    - 

Depreciation for the year arising out of assets revalued   

TOTAL 92,815.89 76,774.13 

 

Note C.24:  FINANCIAL COST INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Interest on Term Loan 4,761.72 3,375.57 

Interest on Cash Credit 768.63 90.92 

Bank Charges 3,102.80 1,445.16 

CC Renewal and Loan Processing Charges 750.00 1,002.20 

TOTAL 9,383.15 5,913.85 

 

Note C.25:  EXTRA-ORDINERY ITEMS & EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - - 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (14,834.45) (10,975.26) 

TOTAL (14,834.45) (10,975.26) 

 

Note D (I):  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  

 

1. Name of the related parties and description of relationship: 

 

Description of Relationship Name of the Related Party 

Associate Concern (Subsidiary) Tapi Wellness Private Limited 

Enterprise controlled by Director Maalana Foods Private Limited 

Director & Key Management Personal Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi - Managing Director 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi - Whole Time Director 

Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi - Whole Time Director 

Naveen Anand - Non-Executive Director 

Kamleshkumar Pandya - Independent Director 

Rekha Hasmukh Shah - Independent Director 

Dalsukh Lavjibhai Lukhi - CFO 

Kashyapkumar Pandav - CS 
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2. Details of Transaction with related parties mentioned in point No. 1 above.     INR in Hundreds 

Name of the related party Nature of relationship Nature of Transactions 
For the year ended 
on March 31, 2025 

Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi Managing Director Director Remuneration 18,000.00 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi Whole Time Director Director Remuneration 6,000.00 

Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi Whole Time Director Director Remuneration 12,000.00 

Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director Director Sitting Fees 220.00 

Kamleshkumar Pandya Independent Director Director Sitting Fees 240.00 

Rekha Hasmukh Shah Independent Director Director Sitting Fees 300.00 

Tapi Wellness Private Limited Associate Concern (Subsidiary) 
Sales 1,91,468.00 

Purchase 27,978.75 

Dalsukhbhai Lavjibhai Lukhi Chief Financial Officer  Remuneration 4,200.00 

Kashyapkumar Pandav Company Secretory Remuneration 3,960.00 

Maalana Foods Private Limited Enterprise controlled Director Sales 1,608.00 

3. Following are the balance outstanding at the year ended 31.03.2025.     INR in Hundreds 

Name of the related party Nature of relationship Nature of Transactions As at March 31, 2025 

Tapi Wellness Private Limited Associate Concern (Subsidiary) 
Investment in Equity share 800.00 

Advance From Customers 28,307.00 

 

Note D (II):  EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)  

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity  holders of the Company by the weighted 

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.   

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of  the Company by the weighted average number 
of Equity shares outstanding during the  year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all 

the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares. 

The Basic EPS is calculated as under: 

Particulars 
For the year ended on 

March 31, 2025 
For the year ended on 

March 31, 2024 

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (INR in Hundred) (1,57,227.64) (24,089.91) 

No. of Weighted Equity Shares for Basic EPS (in Nos.) 42,13,547 41,17,599 

No. of Weighted Equity Shares for Diluted EPS (in Nos.) 43,01,245 41,99,832 

Basic Earnings Per Share (In INR) (3.73) (0.61) 

Diluted Earnings Per Share (In INR) (3.66) (0.60) 

 
(III)       EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP) 

On May 30, 2023, pursuant to the approval by the shareholders, the Company is authorised to create, grant, issue, offer and allot at any time 

or from time to time to or for the benefit of present and / or future Permanent Employees, options exercisable into not more than 100000 

(One Lakhs Only) fully paid up equity shares of the Company (“Equity Share(s)”), under one or more tranches, each option would be 

exercisable for one Equity Shares of the face value of Rupees 10.00 (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid up on payment of the requisite 
exercise price to the Company under the Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023. Out of this, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the board of director in their meeting held on June 03, 2024 has Granted 34,250 options to the eligible 

employees of the company at an exercise price of 40.00 per share. The vesting period for the ESOP’s is Year One (1) from the date of grant of 

options. The exercise period of the options granted shall be 2 months after vesting period. 

Scheme ESOP 2023 

Date of grant 03.06.2024 

No. of options granted 34250 

Exercise price per option (Rs.) 40.00 

Fair value of option on grant date (Rs.) 135.00 

Vesting period Year One (1) from the date of grant of options 

Vesting requirements All the options granted under the ESOP – 2023 would vest at the end of 
first year from the date of Grant of such Options. 

Exercise period exercise period of the options granted shall be 2 months after vesting 
period 

Method of settlement Through allotment of one equity share for each option granted 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Movement in Stock Options during the year: 

The following reconciles the share option outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year: 

Particulars 

Shares arising out of options 

Year ended  
March 31, 2025 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) - - 

Outstanding at the beginning - - 

Granted 34250 - 

Exercised - - 

Forfeited and expired - - 

Outstanding at the end 34250 - 

Exercisable at the end - - 

Assumptions used during the year for options granted: 

 

Particular ESOP 2023 

Risk free interest rate 7.12% 

Expected life 1.1 Years 

Expected volatility 44.30% 

Expected dividend 0.00% 

Fair value of the underlying share at the time of grant of the option 135 

Expense arising from share- based payment transactions: 

Total expenses arising from share- based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as 

follows: 

(Rs. in hundred) 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Share Based Payment to Employees 27,607.01 - 

 

Note E:  

 

DISCLOSURE AS PER SECTION 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Particulars 

Balance as on March 31, 2025 Balance as on March 31, 2024 

INR in 
Hundreds 

% of 
Total 

Maximum amount 
outstanding during 

the year 

INR in 
Hundreds 

% of 
Total 

Maximum amount 
outstanding during 

the year 

Non-Current Investment       

Investment in Subsidiary Company       

Tapi Wellness Private Limited 800.00 100% 800.00 800.00 100% 990.00 
 

Note F:  OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES  

(a) The Company does not have Lease liability and hence no reporting related to the same has been made. 

(b) There has been no revaluation to Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(c) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for 

holding any Benami property. 

(d) The Company holds all the title deeds of immovable property in its name. 

(e) The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoter, director, KMP in nature of loan during the year. 

(f) The Company is not declared willful defaulter by bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(g) The Company has not applied for any scheme of arrangement under Sections 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013. 

(h) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company, hence details regarding CSR activities are 
not provided. 

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

(j) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year. 

(k) The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 

(l) The Company does not have number of layer of Companies as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,2017 
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(m) All the Disclosures as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 are given in this Financial Statement which are applicable 
to the Company. Disclosures for such requirements as provided in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 which are not included in 
this financial statement is due to transactions / matters which are either not occurred during the year or not applicable to the Company. 

(n) The Company has not given any advance or loan or invested funds from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources with 
the understanding that intermediary would directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or equity identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company as ultimate beneficiaries or provide any guarantee or security or the like to on behalf of 
ultimate beneficiaries. 

(o) The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity with the understanding that the Company would directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate 
beneficiary) or provided any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary. 

 

Note G:  ANALYTICAL RATIOS  

 Particulars Numerator Denominator 
2024-25 

Ratio 

2023-24 

Ratio 

Changes 
of % 

Explanation 

(a) Current Ratios Current Assets  Current Liabilities  0.98 5.60 82.50% Increase in Current 
Liabilities 

(b) Debt Equity Ratio Debt  Total Equity  0.59 0.16 268.75% Increase in Total Debt 

(c)  Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

Earning Available 
for Debt Service  

Debt Service  (2.05) 1.40 246.43% Decrease in earnings 
available for debt service 

(d) Return on Equity 
(%) 

Net Profit after tax  Average 

Shareholder’s 
Equity  

(13.97%) (2.77%) 404.44% Decrease in Net Profit 
after Tax 

(e) Inventory Turnover 
Ratio 

Sales Average Inventory  8.87 11.05 19.73% Decrease in Sales 

(f) Debtors Turnover 
Ratio  

Net Credit Sales  Average Account 
Receivable  

12.74 13.10 2.75% - 

(g) Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio  

Net Credit 
Purchase  

Average Trade 
Payables  

12.09 23.76 49.12% Increase in Average 
Trade Payable 

(h) Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio  

Net Sales  Average Working 
Capital  

4.91 3.76 30.59% Decrease in Average 
Working Capital 

(i) Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit  Net Sales  (8.99%) (1.20%) 649.60% Decrease in Net Profit 

(j) Return on Capital 
Employed (%) 

EBIT  Capital Employed  (7.99%) (1.42%) 460.93% Decrease in EBIT and 

Increase in Capital 
Employed 

(k) Return on 
Investment (%) 

Income on 
Investment  

Average 
Investment  

NA NA - - 

Note H:  OTHER DISCLOSURES & INFORMATION  

(I) The balance of debtors, creditors, unsecured loans and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation. However, the director has 
certified the respective balances. 

(II) Expenses for which supporting evidences are not found are duly certified by the directors. 
(III) C.I.F. Value of Imports: INR 6,46,873.92 Hundred 
(IV) Earning in Foreign Exchange: Nil  
(V) Previous reporting period’s figure have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current reporting 

period’s classifications / disclosure. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON  

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

To the Members of  

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED (‘the Company’) and its 
subsidiary, TAPI WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED (collectively referred to as “group”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31stMarch 
2025, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (herein referred to as “consolidated financial statement”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit 
and cash flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis of opinion 

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the 
responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, 
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

1. Revenue Recognition - Refer Note B(II) to the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements 

The revenue of the Company consists primarily of sale of 
food products that are sold through distributors, modern 
trade and direct sale channels amongst others.  

Revenue is recognized when the control of products is 
transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled 
obligation.  

Owing to the volume of sales transactions, size of the 
distribution network and varied terms of contracts with 
customers, revenue is determined to be an area involving 
significant risk in line with the requirements of the Standards 
on Auditing and hence, requiring significant auditor 
attention. 

Principal Audit Procedures 

Our key audit procedures around revenue recognition 
included, but were not limited to, the following. 

 Assessed the appropriateness of the revenue recognition 
accounting policies of the Company including those 
relating to rebates and trade discounts, by evaluating 
compliance with the applicable accounting standards. 

 Evaluated the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with respect to 
revenue recognition including general and specific 
information technology controls. 

 Performed substantive testing on selected samples of 
revenue transactions recorded during the year by testing 
the underlying documents including contracts, invoices, 
goods dispatch notes, shipping documents and customer 
receipts, wherever applicable. 

 Understood and evaluated the Company’s process for 
recording of the accruals for discounts and rebates and 
ongoing incentive schemes and on a test basis, verified the 
year-end provisions made in respect of such schemes. 
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

The holding Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not  include the 

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained 

during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect 

to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 

and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 

of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,  and 

whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 

to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.   

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters: 

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of Tapi Wellness Private Limited (Subsidiary Company), whose financial 

statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs.50,21,351/- as at 31st March, 2025, total revenues of Rs.2,69,29,680/- and net cash 

flows amounting to Rs. -43,611/- for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated 

financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 15,87,581/- for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as considered in the 

consolidated financial statements, in respect of Tapi Wellness Private Limited, whose financial statements / financial information have not 

been audited by us. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 

furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as 

it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified 

in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the f inancial 

statements/ financial information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 

account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 

of the Act; 

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and 

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

II.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeable losses. 
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III.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

IV.  i. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to 

the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

ii. The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to 

the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and 

iii. Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above, 

contain any material misstatement. 

V.  The company has not declared any dividend during the year. 

VI.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its 

books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout 

the year for all transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

VII.  The audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention. 

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ 

“CARO”), to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO 

reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which 

reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

 For Kansariwala & Chevli  

Chartered Accountants  

 

 

 

 

Date:  May 08, 2025 

Place: Surat  

CA A. H. Chevli 

Partner 

Membership No. 038259 

Firm Reg. No. 123689W 

UDIN: 25038259BMIFJC8984 
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ANNEXURE - A  

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) 
and its subsidiaries as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding o f its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;  

(a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; 

(b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financia l control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 For Kansariwala & Chevli 
Chartered Accountants  

 
 
 

Date:  May 08, 2025 
Place: Surat  

CA A. H. Chevli 
Partner 

Membership No. 038259 
Firm Reg. No. 123689W 

UDIN: 25038259BMIFJC8984 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2025 INR in Hundred 

 Particulars Note No. As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

I Equity & Liabilities    

1 Shareholders Fund    

(a) Share Capital C.1 4,27,300.00 4,16,950.00 

(b) Reserve and Surplus C.2 7,77,932.62 7,44,439.22 

(c) Money received against share Warrants  - 76,807.50 

(d) Minority Interest  200.00 200.00 

   12,05,432.62 12,38,396.72 

2 Share application money pending allotment  - - 

3 Non-Current Liabilities    

(a) Long-term borrowings C.3 5,05,223.78 73,541.69 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities  - - 

(c) Other Long-term Liabilities C.4 10,319.36 5,000.00 

(d) Long-term Provision  - - 

   5,15,543.14 78,541.69 

4 Current Liabilities    

(a) Short-term Borrowings C.5 1,74,190.93 1,02,455.83 

(b) Trade Payables C.6 2,15,460.38 7,600.08 

(c) Other current Liabilities C.7 61,006.69 65,313.55 

(d) Short-term Provisions C.8 6,825.13 1,815.09 

   4,57,483.13 1,77,184.55 

 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES  21,78,458.89 14,94,123.96 
     

II Assets    

1 Non - Current Assets    

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets    

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment (Net of Depreciation) C.9 6,45,476.72 5,08,162.55 

 (ii) Intangible Assets (Net of Depreciation)  -  -    

 (iii) Capital Work in Progress C.10 10,61,491.37 87,075.65 

   17,06,968.09 5,95,238.20 

(b) Non-Current Investment C.11 1,100.69 1,033.94 

(c) Deferred Tax Assets  1,343.19 3,075.21 

(d) Long term loans and advances   -     -    

(e) Other non-current assets   -     -    

   17,09,411.97 5,99,347.35 

2 Current Assets    

(a) Current investments C.12  -    45,011.42 

(b) Inventories C.13 2,06,638.73 1,90,377.66 

(c) Trade receivables C.14 1,42,651.09 1,36,958.49 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents C.15 5,464.74 3,52,594.82 

(e) Short-term loans and advances   -     -    

(f) Other current assets C.16 1,14,292.36 1,69,833.22 

   4,69,046.92 8,94,775.61 

 TOTAL ASSETS  21,78,458.89 14,94,123.96 
  

As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 

  
  

Chartered Accountants  
  

  
Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar Lukhi 
  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 
  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A.H. Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJC8984 

 
                  Chief Financial Officer            Company Secretary 

 
 

   

Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 
 

Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 INR in Hundred 

 
Particulars Note No. 

For the year ended March 
31, 2025 

For the Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

I Income:    

(a) Revenue from Operation C.17 20,18,862.53 22,28,526.71 

(b) Other Income C.18 9,216.14 25,733.74 

 Total:  Revenue  (I)  20,28,078.67 22,54,260.45 

II Expenses:    

(a) Cost of materials consumed C.19 15,30,025.03 14,71,826.36 

(c) Increase / Decrease in Stock C.20 631.68  3,092.52 

(c) Purchase of stock in Trade   -    99,850.06 

(d) Employee Benefit Expenses C.21 1,85,702.66 2,02,786.41 

(e) Other Expenses C.22 3,57,585.20 4,20,125.93 

 Total: Expenses (II)  20,73,944.57 21,97,681.28 

III Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 

amortization (EBITDA) (I) - (II) 

 (45,865.90) 56,579.17 

(a) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses C.23 94,949.67 77,359.17 

(b) Financial Costs C.24 9,395.10 5,919.65 

IV Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax  (1,50,210.67) (26,699.65) 

 Exceptional Items: -    

 Extraordinary items & Exceptional Items C.25 14,834.45 10,975.26 

IV Profit before tax  (1,35,376.22) (15,724.39) 

VII Tax Expenses:    

 Current Tax  (5,339.00) (1,354.60) 

 Earlier Years Tax  (706.37)                          -    

 Mat Credit Availed   -                             -    

 Deferred Tax  (1,732.02) (1,168.54) 

VIII Profit/(Loss) for the period (VI + VII)  (1,43,153.61) (18,247.53) 

IX Earnings Per Share    

 Basic  (3.40) (0.44) 

 Diluted  (3.33) (0.43) 
  

As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 

  
  

Chartered Accountants  
  

  
Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar Lukhi 

  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 

  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A.H. Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJC8984 

 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

 
 

   
Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 

 
Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 INR in Hundred 

 
Particulars 

 For the year ended March 
31, 2025 

For the Year ended March 
31, 2024 

A Cash flow from operating activity    
 Net profit/ (Loss) before tax  (1,35,376.22) (15,724.39) 
 Adjustments for:    

 Finance Cost   9,395.10  5,919.65 

 (Profit)/ Loss on sale of Assets   (14,834.45)              (10,975.26) 
 ESOP Expense  27,607.01 - 

 Depreciation & Amortisation of Expenses  94,949.67                77,359.17  
 Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes (i) (18,258.89)                56,579.17  
 changes in working capital    

 Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:    

 Inventories   (16,261.07)                 1,628.73  
 Trade Receivables   (5,692.60)                47,345.24  

 Short-term loans and advances   -                              -    

 Other Current Assets   55,540.86               (48,789.38) 
 Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating 
liabilities: 

   

 Trade Payables   2,07,860.30              (1,12,607.54) 
 Other Current Liabilities   (4,306.86)                45,717.16  

 Short-term provisions   5,010.04                            -    

 Net increase/(Decrease) in working capital (ii) 2,42,150.67 (66,705.79) 

 Cash generated from operations (i) - (ii) 2,23,891.78 (10,126.62) 

 (Less)    
 Income Tax paid during the year  (6,045.37) (1,354.60) 

 Net Cash inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activity 1 2,17,846.41 (11,481.22) 

B Cash flow from investing activity    

 Add/(Less)    

 Addition to Fixed Assets (Net of revaluation Reserve)   (12,12,855.11)             (2,75,108.83) 
 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets   21,010.00                 21,220.00  
 (Increase)/Decrease in Non-Current Investments   (66.75)                    158.58  

 (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets/ Non-

Current Assets 

  -    

                          -    
 (Increase)/Decrease in Current Investments   45,011.42                  5,813.14  

 Purchase of Shares of subsidiary company   -                              -    

 Net Cash Inflow (outflow) from Investing Activity 2 (11,46,900.44) (2,47,917.11) 

C Cash flow from financing activity    
 Add/(Less)    
 Proceeds from equity share capital (Including Security 

Premium) 

  
 82,582.50            4,71,047.50  

 Proceeds from long-term borrowings   4,36,911.06                 81,468.86  
 Repayment of borrowings   (5,228.98)              (45,625.52) 

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Liabilities   5,319.36   

 Proceeds from other short-term borrowings   71,735.10                 97,180.37  
 Finance cost   (9,395.10)                (5,919.65) 

 Net Cash Inflow /(Outflow) from Financing Activity 3 5,81,923.95 5,98,151.56 

 Net Change in Cash & Cash Equivalent (1+2+3) (3,47,130.09) 3,38,753.23 

 Cash & Cash Equivalent -Opening Balances  3,52,594.81 13,841.59 

 Cash & Cash Equivalent - Closing Balances  5,464.73 352,594.81 
 

As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

For Kansariwala & Chevli 
  

  
Chartered Accountants  

  
  

Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar Lukhi 
  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 

  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A.H. Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJC8984 

 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 
 

Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 
CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

NOTE A. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited is a public limited company incorporated under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is 

engaged in manufacturing and selling of Jam and Jelly based products. 

NOTE B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(I) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India including the 

Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain Fixed Assets, which 

are carried at revalued amounts. 

(II) REVENUE RECOGNITION: 

Revenue is recognized when the control of products is transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation. 

(III) INVENTORIES: 

Raw materials are valued at cost and finished goods are valued at cost or market value whichever is lower. 

(IV) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: 

The company has valued its property, plant and equipment at historical cost less depreciation on WDV method. 

Depreciation is provided based on useful life on of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

(V) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as short-term employee benefits. 

Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognized as actual amounts due in the period in which employee renders the 

related services. 

The Company contributes towards Provident Fund and ESIC. The Company does not have any gratuity fund and to that extent the 

requirements of AS 15 which deals with the Accounting for Retirement Benefits in the Financial Statements of Employees are not 

applicable to the company. 

(VI) TAXES ON INCOME:            

Current Tax is determinate as the amounts of tax payable to the taxation authorities in respect of taxable income for the period. 

For the purpose of determining deferred tax assets in current financial year, the WDV of property, plant and equipment for 

accounting purposes and for tax purposes are compared and the differences is charged to the profit and loss account, subject to the 

consideration of prudence. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Note C.1:  SHARE CAPITAL INR in Hundred 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(a) Authorised   

50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10.00 each 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00 

(Previous Year 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)   

 5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00 

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up   

42,73,000 Equity Shares of INR 10.00 each 4,27,300.00 4,16,950.00 

(Previous Year 41,69,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)   

TOTAL 4,27,300.00 4,16,950.00 

 

(c) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding 

Particulars 

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

No. of 
Shares 

INR in 
Hundreds 

No. of 
Shares 

INR in 
Hundreds 

Shares Outstanding at the beginning 4169500 4,16,950.00 3913500 3,91,350.00 

Add: Bonus Share issued during the year  -     -     -     -    

Add: Share issued during the year 103500 10,350.00 256000 25,600.00 

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year 4273000 4,27,300.00 4169500 4,16,950.00 

 

(d) Terms attached to Equity Shares 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The company has not declared any dividend during the year.       

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
       

(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company  

Particulars 

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Holding 

Ghanshyambhai Laljibhai Lukhi 1672647 39.14% 1672647 40.12% 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi 1133853 26.54% 1133853 27.19% 

 

(f) Shareholding of Promoters/ Promoter Group 

Name of Promoters and Promoter Group 

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 % 
Changes 

during the 
Year 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Holding 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Holding 

Ghanshyambhai Laljibhai Lukhi (Promoter) 1672647 39.14% 1672647 40.12% -0.97% 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (Promoter) 1133853 26.54% 1133853 27.19% -0.66% 

Sweta Ashokkumar Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Ushaben Ghanshyambhai Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Laljibhai Shamjibhai Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi (Promoter Group) 5000 0.12% 5000 0.12% 0.00% 

Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 2826500 66.15% 2826500 67.79% -1.64% 
 

(g) Details of number and amount of shares issued in last five (5) years without payment in cash, bonus, buyback of shares, forfeited 
shares: 

(i) Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares 

Particulars 
Aggregate number of 

shares issued in 5 years 
Bonus Share issued 

during F.Y.2024-25 
Bonus Share issued 

during F.Y.2023-24 
Bonus share issued 
during F.Y. 2022-23 

Equity shares allotted as fully paid 
bonus shares 

2077500 - - 2077500 

TOTAL 2077500 - - 2077500 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

Note C.2:  RESERVES & SURPLUS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Profit and Loss Account   

Opening Balance (36,880.78) (18,633.25) 

Less: Bonus Share issued during the year  -     -    

 (36,880.78) (18,633.25) 

Profit transferred from Profit & Loss a/c (1,43,153.61) (18,247.53) 

Closing Balance (1,80,034.39) (36,880.78) 

Securities Premium Account   

Opening Balance 7,81,320.00 4,12,680.00 

Add: Addition During the Year 1,49,040.00 3,68,640.00 

 9,30,360.00 7,81,320.00 

Less: Bonus Share issued during the year  -     -    

Closing Balance 9,30,360.00 7,81,320.00 

ESOP Outstanding Reserve   

Opening Balance - - 

Add : Addition During the Year 27,607.01 - 

 27,607.01 - 

Less : Bonus Share issued during the year  - 

Closing Balance 27,607.01 - 

TOTAL 7,77,932.62 7,44,439.22 

 

Note C.3:  LONG TERM BORROWING INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Term Loans (Secured) 5,95,180.83 78,581.55 

Less: Current Maturity of Long-Term Borrowings (89,957.05) (5,039.86) 

TOTAL 5,05,223.78 73,541.69 

 

Name of 

Lender 
Purpose 

Sanctioned 

Amount (INR 

in Hundreds) 

Rate of 

Interest 
Securities Offered Re-payment schedule 

Outstanding as on 

March 31, 2024 (INR 

in Hundreds) 

Indian Bank Purchase of 
Plant & 

Machinery 

4,08,000.00 Repo + 
2.70% 

Hypothecation of 
Plant & Machinery 

Payable in 72 Principal 
Instalment of Rs. 807533/- 

4,11,113.23 

Indian Bank Construction 
of Factory 
Building 

4,45,000.00 Repo + 
2.70% 

Equitable 
Mortgage of 

Factory Building 

Payable in 72 Principal 
Instalment of Rs. 310742/- 

1,56,183.89 

BOB Vehicle 
Loan 

Purchase of 
Vehicle 

36,000.00 MCLR + 
0.00% 

Hypothecation of 
Vehicle 

Payable in 72 Principal 
Instalment of Rs. 64357/- 

27,883.71 

TOTAL 5,95,180.83 

The Term Loans are guaranteed by directors of the company. 

Note C.4:  OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Security Deposits from Customers (Unsecured) 10,319.36 5,000.00 

TOTAL 10,319.36 5,000.00 

 

Note C.5:  SHORT TERM BORROWING (SECURED) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Loan Payable on demand    

     Cash Credit - Bank of Baroda 83,957.10 96,799.80 

     Credit Card - Bank of Baroda 276.77 616.17 

Current Maturity of Long-Term Borrowings 89,957.05 5,039.86 

TOTAL 1,74,190.93 1,02,455.83 
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Cash Credit Limits from Banks is secured by way of hypothecation of inventories and book debts and charge over fixed assets of the 
company and personal guarantee of two directors .The cash credit is repayable on demand and carries interest Repo+2.70% p.a. Credit 
facilities from Indian Bank are also personally guaranteed by Directors of the company.      

Note C.6:  TRADE PAYABLES (UNSECURED) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

2,15,460.38 7,600.08 

TOTAL 2,15,460.38 7,600.08 

Note: The company has not receive any intimation from the suppliers regarding status under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Developments Act, 2006 for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 and hence disclosure regarding these provision shall not be made. 

TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2024-25 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not due 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

i MSME - - - - - - 

ii Others 2,15,460.38 - - - - 2,15,460.38 

iii Disputed dues – MSME - - - - - - 

iv Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 

TOTAL 2,15,460.38 - - - - 2,15,460.38 

 

TRADE PAYABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2023-24 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not due 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

i MSME - - - - - - 

ii Others 7,600.08 - - - - 7,600.08 

iii Disputed dues – MSME - - - - - - 

iv Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 

TOTAL 7,600.08 - - - - 7,600.08 

 

Note C.7:  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (UNSECURED) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Statutory Dues 2,819.86 18,232.85 

Advance from Customers 54,788.77 46,728.11 

Credit Card Bill Payable 3,398.05 352.59 

TOTAL 61,006.69 65,313.55 

 

Note C.8:  SHORT TERM PROVISION INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Provision for Expenses 1,486.13 460.49 

Provision for Income Tax 5,339.00 1,354.60 

TOTAL 6,825.13 1,815.09 
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Notes: 

A. Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. All the pre operative expenses including financial costs incurred 
till the commencement of commercial operations are capitalized in proportion to the value of assets.     

B. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) Method. 
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Note C.10:  CAPITAL-WORK-IN PROGRESS (CWIP)  

CWIP ageing schedule for F.Y.2024-25     INR in Hundreds 

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Projects in Progress 
 

9,74,415.72 87,075.65 - - 10,61,491.37 

Projects temporarily suspended 
 

- - - - - 

 

CWIP ageing schedule for F.Y.2023-24     INR in Hundreds 

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 

Projects in Progress 
 

87,075.65  - - 87,075.65 

Projects temporarily suspended 
 

- - - - - 

 

Note C.11:  NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Fixed Deposit at KRBC Division 1,100.69 1,033.94 

TOTAL 1,100.69 1,033.94 

 

Note C.12:  CURRENT INVESTMENTS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Liqui Loans - 45,011.42 

TOTAL - 45,011.42 

 

Note C.13:  INVENTORIES (As taken, valued and certified by the Management) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024          

Raw Material 1,85,263.78 1,68,371.03 

Work-in-Progress 8,852.40 9,356.72 

Finished Goods 12,522.55 12,649.91 

TOTAL 2,06,638.73 1,90,377.66 

 

Note C.14:  TRADE RECEIVABLES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)   

Exceeding Six Months 368.59 288.50 

others 1,42,282.50 1,36,669.99 

TOTAL 1,42,651.09 1,36,958.49 

 

TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2024-25 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of  
payment 

Total 
Less than 
6 months 

6 months - 
1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

i Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good 

1,38,086.46 4,196.04 142.75 123.82 102.02  -    1,42,651.09 

ii Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
considered doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

iii Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good 

- - - - - - - 

iv Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 1,38,086.46 4,196.04 142.75 123.82 102.02  -    1,42,651.09 
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TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE FOR F.Y. 2023-24 INR in Hundreds 

Particulars Not Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of  
payment 

Total 
Less than 
6 months 

6 months - 
1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 
3 years 

Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good 

1,24,173.10 12,496.89 186.48 - 102.02 - 1,36,958.49 

Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

considered doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good 

- - - - - - - 

Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful 

- - - - - - - 

TOTAL 1,24,173.10 12,496.89 186.48 - 102.02 - 1,36,958.49 

 

Note C.15:  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

Cash on hand 754.18 1,001.47 

Balances with Banks in current accounts 4,710.56 3,51,593.35 

TOTAL 5,464.74 3,52,594.82 

 

Note C.16:  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)   

Advance to Supplier 52,600.81 92,493.96 

Advance to Others 1,100.00 1,100.00 

Security Deposits 6,493.62 5,993.62 

Pre-Paid Expenses 1,297.28 1,359.75 

Advance Salary to Workers and Staff 3,525.00 5,016.80 

GST ITC Receivable 9,335.45 1,259.32 

IPO Expenses not written off 34,678.33 51,386.49 

Advance Tax, TDS, TCS 5,261.87 11,223.28 

TOTAL 1,14,292.36 1,69,833.22 

 

Note C.17:  REVENUE FROM OPERATION INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Domestic Sales 20,18,862.53 21,81,140.84 

Export Sales - 47,012.99 

Product Trial income - 372.88 

TOTAL 20,18,862.53 22,28,526.71 

 
Note C.18:  OTHER INCOME INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Incentive - Drawback  -    80.90 

Interest on Fixed Deposit 66.75 15,557.02 

Interest on Security Deposit - DGVCL 784.84  -    

Interest Subsidy Received  -    4,976.93 

Other Subsidy Received 109.39 1,011.69 

Interest from Liqui Loans 724.36 3,035.95 

Capital Gain from Sale of Mutual Funds  7,135.06 793.49 

Interest on I.T.Refund 368.81 136.10 

Exchange Rate Difference 26.94 141.67 

TOTAL 9,216.14 25,733.74 
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Note C.19:  COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Stock at the beginning of the year 1,68,371.03 1,66,907.25 

Add: Purchases during the year 15,46,789.78 14,89,921.43 

Less: Purchase Returns during the year  -    (15,454.79) 

Less: Rate Difference 128.00 (1,176.50) 

Less: Stock at the end of the year (1,85,263.78) (1,68,371.03) 

TOTAL 15,30,025.03 14,71,826.36 

 

Note C.20:  INCREASE / DECREASE IN STOCK INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Stock at the end of the year   

Finished Goods 12,522.55 12,649.91 

Work-in-progress 8,852.40 9,356.72 

 21,374.94 22,006.63 

Stock at the beginning of the year   

Finished Goods 12,649.91 16,975.70 

Work-in-progress 9,356.72 8,123.44 

 22,006.63 25,099.14 

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCK (631.68) (3,092.52) 

 

Note C.21:  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Director's Remuneration 48,000.00 48,000.00 

Salaries & Wages 1,31,833.68 1,47,080.95 

Contributors to PF & ESI 5,868.98 7,705.46 

TOTAL 1,85,702.66 2,02,786.41 

 

Note C.22:  OTHER EXPENSES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Manufacturing Expenses   

Carriage inward Expense 7,116.45 10,031.34 

Claim, Rebate and Rate Difference Expenses 36.02 53.90 

Clearing and Forwarding Charges  -    1,503.66 

Custom Duty  -    2.77 

Factory Expense 8,647.38 12,081.57 

GST Tax Paid 17.56 - 

Machinery Repairing Expense 20,269.82 27,589.89 

Packing Charges 56,633.00 78,254.00 

Power and Fuel Expense 23,273.22 41,367.68 
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Note C.22:  OTHER EXPENSES (Continued) INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Selling, Administrative & General Expenses   

Advertisement 2,908.07 5,770.42 

Amortisation of IPO Expenses and Preferential Issue 16,708.16 17,422.45 

Audit Fees 1,200.00 1,200.00 

Bad Debt 229.04 120.77 

Canteen Expense 3,748.02 3,965.22 

Carriage Outward Expenses 1,09,358.75 1,32,525.68 

Commission Expenses 3,465.23 3,691.82 

Compounding Fees  -    200.00 

Courier and Postage Charges 1,392.00 897.06 

Discount Expenses  -    1,807.29 

Design Expense 120.00 230.00 

ESOP Expense 27,607.01 - 

Film Development Expense 225.00 - 

Godown Rent 560.00 840.00 

GST ITC Lapse 117.43 59.49 

Insurance Expenses 2,854.11 2,353.20 

Interest on Custom Duty 2.28 2.40 

Interest on Late Payment of GST 28.80 4.23 

Interest on Late Payment of TDS/TCS 186.56 98.26 

Internet Expenses 98.44 173.96 

Lab Testing Fees 315.00 395.00 

Late Fees on GST  -    5.50 

Legal and Professional Charges  13,657.38 30,067.54 

Loading and Unloading Charges 1,112.60 908.50 

Marketing Expense 10,926.20 12,261.78 

Membership Fees 150.00 560.00 

Mehsul Expense  -    103.68 

Miscellaneous Expenses  421.78 356.81 

Online Sales Commission Expense  -    4.47 

Online Sales Shipping and Other Expenses 1,399.10 908.87 

Packing Design Expenses  -    400.00 

Preservation Charges 110.89 255.39 

Property Tax 195.06 496.75 

Retail Shop Rent 1482.00 - 

Retail Shop Expense 534.70 - 

ROC Challan 81.00 200.02 

Round off (0.03) (0.03) 

Sales Promotion Expenses 1,066.63  -    

Sitting Fees 780.00 1,020.00 

Software Renewal Charges  -    108.00 

Sponser Bank Fees  -    600.00 

Stall Service Charges 4,125.88 3,010.56 

Stationery and Printing Expenses 3,227.62 799.26 

Tea and Refreshment Expenses 4,097.24 4,948.92 

Telephone Expenses 646.31 438.38 

Travelling Expenses 18,263.66 11,163.86 

Vatav/ Kasar 31.67  (128.86) 

Vehicle Expenses 7,726.54 8,960.21 

Website Development Expense 431.65 34.25 

TOTAL 3,57,585.20 4,20,125.93 

 



   

 

 

 

Annual Report 2024-25 | 70  

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

INR in Hundreds 

Remuneration to Auditors: For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Statutory Audit Fees 1,200.00 1,200.00 

Tax Audit Fees - - 

Taxation Matter Fees - - 

TOTAL 1,200.00 1,200.00 

 

Note C.23:  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Depreciation on Fixed Assets (See Notes C.9) 94,949.67 77,359.17 

Preliminary Expenses Written off  -     -    

 94,949.67 77,359.17 

Less: Withdrawal from revaluation reserve on account of extra  -     -    

Depreciation for the year arising out of assets revalued - - 

TOTAL 94,949.67 77,359.17 

 

Note C.24:  FINANCIAL COST INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 

March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 

March 31, 2024 

Interest on Term Loan 4,761.72 3,375.57 

Interest on Cash Credit 768.63 90.92 

Bank Charges 3,114.75 1,450.96 

CC Renewal and Loan Processing Charges 750.00 1,002.20 

TOTAL 9,395.10 5,919.65 

 

Note C.25:  EXTRA-ORDINERY ITEMS & EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS INR in Hundreds 

Particulars For the year ended on 
March 31, 2025 

For the year ended on 
March 31, 2024 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (14,834.45) (10,975.26) 

TOTAL (14,834.45) (10,975.26) 

 

Note D(I):  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES  

 

1. Name of the related parties and description of relationship: 

 

Description of Relationship Name of the Related Party 

Enterprise controlled by Director Maalana Foods Private Limited 

Director & Key Management Personal Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi - Managing Director 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi - Whole Time Director 

Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi - Whole Time Director  

Naveen Anand - Non-Executive Director 

Kamleshkumar Pandya - Independent Director 

Rekha Hasmukh Shah - Independent Director 

Ushaben Ghanshyambhai Lukhi - Director of Tapi Wellness Private Limited 

Dalsukhbhai Lavjibhai Lukhi - CFO 

Kashyapkumar Pandav - CS 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

2. Details of Transaction with related parties mentioned in point No. 1 above.  

INR in Hundreds 

Name of the related party Nature of relationship Nature of Transactions 
For the year ended 
on March 31, 2025 

Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi Managing Director Director Remuneration 18,000.00 

Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi Whole Time Director Director Remuneration 6,000.00 

Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi Whole Time Director Director Remuneration 12,000.00 

Ushaben Ghanshyam Lukhi Director of Tapi Wellness Private 
Limited 

Director Remuneration 12,000.00 

Naveen Anand Non-Executive Director Director Sitting Fees 220.00 

Kamleshkumar Pandya Independent Director Director Sitting Fees 240.00 

Rekha Hasmukh Shah Independent Director Director Sitting Fees 300.00 

Dalsukhbhai Lavjibhai Lukhi Chief Financial Officer  Remuneration 4,200.00 

Kashyapkumar Pandav Company Secretory Remuneration 3,960.00 

Maalana Foods Private Limited Enterprise controlled by Director Sales 1,608.00 

The company has no balance outstanding to related parties as at the period ended March 31, 2025. 

Note D(II):  EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.  

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of  the Company by the weighted average number 
of Equity shares outstanding during the  year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all 
the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares. 

The Basic EPS is calculated as under: 

Particulars 
For the year ended on 

March 31, 2025 
For the year ended on 

March 31, 2024 

Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (INR in Hundred) (1,43,153.61) (18,247.53) 

No. of Weighted Equity Shares for Basic EPS (in Nos.) 42,13,547 41,17,599 

No. of Weighted Equity Shares for Diluted EPS (in Nos.) 43,01,245 41,99,832 

Basic Earnings Per Share (In INR) (3.40) (0.44) 

Diluted Earnings Per Share (In INR) (3.33) (0.43) 

 
(III)       EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP) 

On May 30, 2023, pursuant to the approval by the shareholders, the Company is authorised to create, grant, issue, offer and allot at any time 

or from time to time to or for the benefit of present and / or future Permanent Employees, options exercisable into not more than 100000 

(One Lakhs Only) fully paid up equity shares of the Company (“Equity Share(s)”), under one or more tranches, each option would be 

exercisable for one Equity Shares of the face value of Rupees 10.00 (Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid up on payment of the requisite 
exercise price to the Company under the Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023. Out of this, the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee of the board of director in their meeting held on June 03, 2024 has Granted 34,250 options to the elig ible 

employees of the company at an exercise price of 40.00 per share. The vesting period for the ESOP’s is Year One (1) from the date of grant of 

options. The exercise period of the options granted shall be 2 months after vesting period. 

Scheme ESOP 2023 

Date of grant 03.06.2024 

No. of options granted 34250 

Exercise price per option (Rs.) 40.00 

Fair value of option on grant date (Rs.) 135.00 

Vesting period Year One (1) from the date of grant of options 

Vesting requirements All the options granted under the ESOP – 2023 would vest at the end of 
first year from the date of Grant of such Options. 

Exercise period exercise period of the options granted shall be 2 months after vesting 
period 

Method of settlement Through allotment of one equity share for each option granted 
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Movement in Stock Options during the year: 

The following reconciles the share option outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year: 

Particulars 

Shares arising out of options 

Year ended  
March 31, 2025 

Year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) - - 

Outstanding at the beginning - - 

Granted 34250 - 

Exercised - - 

Forfeited and expired - - 

Outstanding at the end 34250 - 

Exercisable at the end - - 

Assumptions used during the year for options granted: 

 

Particular ESOP 2023 

Risk free interest rate 7.12% 

Expected life 1.1 Years 

Expected volatility 44.30% 

Expected dividend 0.00% 

Fair value of the underlying share at the time of grant of the option 135 

Expense arising from share- based payment transactions: 

Total expenses arising from share- based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as 

follows : 
(Rs. in hundred) 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Share Based Payment to Employees 27,607.01 - 

 

Note E:  DISCLOSURE AS PER SCHEDULE III OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013  

Name of the entity 

Net assets i.e. total assets minus total 
liabilities 

Share in Profit and Loss 

As % of 
Consolidated Net 

Assets 
INR in Hundreds 

As % of Consolidated 
Net Assets 

INR in Hundreds 

Parent (Indian)     

Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 98.130% 11,82,890.30 -109.83% (1,57,227.64) 

Subsidiary Company (Indian) 

(Investment as per equity method) 
    

Tapi Wellness Private Limited 1.496% 18,033.86 7.86% 11,259.22 

Minority Interest in Subsidiary 0.374% 4,508.46 1.97% 2,814.81 

TOTAL 100.00% 12,05,432.62 100.00% (1,43,153.61) 

All subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (whether Indian or foreign) will be covered under consolidated financial statements. 

Note F:  OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES  

(a) The Company does not have Lease liability and hence no reporting related to the same has been made. 

(b) There has been no revaluation to Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(c) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for 

holding any Benami property. 

(d)  The Company holds all the title deeds of immovable property in its name. 

(e) The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoter, director, KMP in nature of loan during the year. 

(f) The Company is not declared willful defaulter by bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(g) The Company has not applied for any scheme of arrangement under Sections 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013. 

(h) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company, hence details regarding CSR activities are 

not provided. 

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

(j) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year. 

(k) The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 

during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 

(l) The Company does not have number of layer of Companies as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,2017 

(m) All the Disclosures as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 are given in this Financial Statement which are applicable 

to the Company. Disclosures for such requirements as provided in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 which are not included in 

this financial statement is due to transactions / matters which are either not occurred during the year or not applicable to the Company. 

Note G:  ANALYTICAL RATIOS  

 Particulars Numerator Denominator 
2024-25 

Ratio 

2023-24 

Ratio 

Changes 
of % 

Explanation 

(a) Current Ratios Current Assets  Current Liabilities  1.03 5.05 79.60% Decrease in Current 
Assets and Increase in 
Current Liabilities 

(b) Debt Equity Ratio Debt  Total Equity  0.58 0.16 262.50% Increase in Total Debt 

(c)  Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

Earning 
Available for 
Debt Service  

Debt Service  (0.25%) 1.58 122.94% Decrease in earnings 
available for debt 
service 

(d) Return on Equity 
(%) 

Net Profit after 
tax  

Average 
Shareholder’s Equity  

(12.55%) (2.00%) 528.74% Decrease in Net profit 
after tax 

(e) Inventory Turnover 
Ratio 

Sales Average Inventory  10.17 11.66 12.78% Decrease in Sales 

(f) Debtors Turnover 

Ratio  

Net Credit Sales  Average Account 

Receivable  

14.44 13.87 4.11% - 

(g) Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio  

Net Credit 
Purchase  

Average Trade 
Payables  

13.87 23.05 39.83% Increase in Average 
Trade Payables 

(h) Net Capital 

Turnover Ratio  

Net Sales  Average Working 

Capital  

5.54 4.00 38.50% Decrease in Average 

Working Capital 

(i) Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit  Net Sales  (7.09%) (0.82%) 765.98% Decrease in Net Profit 

(j) Return on Capital 
Employed (%) 

EBIT  Capital Employed  (6.81%) (0.76%) 791.61% Decrease in EBIT 

(k) Return on 

Investment (%) 

Income on 

Investment  

Average Investment  NA NA - - 

 

Note H:  OTHER DISCLOSURES & INFORMATION  

(I) The balance of debtors, creditors, unsecured loans and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation. However, the director has 
certified the respective balances. 
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(II) Expenses for which supporting evidences are not found are duly certified by the directors. 

(III) C.I.F. Value of Imports: INR 6,46,873.92 Hundred 

(IV) Earning in Foreign Exchange: Nil  

(V) Previous reporting period’s figure have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current reporting 
period’s classifications / disclosure. 

 

As Per Our attached report of even date  
 

For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 

  
  

Chartered Accountants  
  

  
Firm Reg. No. 123689W Ghanshyam Lukhi Ashokkumar Lukhi 
  Chairman & Managing Director Whole-Time Director 
  DIN: 06704416  DIN: 06704408 
CA A. H. Chevli 

 
    

Partner  
 

 
  

Membership No.: 038259 
 

Dalsukhbhai L. Lukhi Kashyapkumar Pandav 
UDIN: 25038259BMIFJC8984 

 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

 
 

   

Place: Surat; Date: May 08, 2025 
 

Place: Surat  Date: May 08, 2025 
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NOTICE OF 7TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventh (7th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Tapi Fruit Processing Limited will be 
held on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact 
the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and 
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the report of Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions. 

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and 
the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and 
adopted.” 

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and 
the report of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Naveen Anand (08416606), who retires by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, other than Managing Director, are subject to retirement by rotation. Mr. Naveen 
Anand (08416606), who was appointed as Non Executive Director for the current term, and is the longest-serving member on the Board, 
retires by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re-appointment.   

To the extent that Mr. Naveen Anand (08416606) is required to retire by rotation, he would need to be reappointed as such. Therefore, 
shareholders are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr. Naveen Anand (08416606) as such, to 
the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

3. To approve Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions with Tapi Wellness Private Limited, Related Party: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the approval 
given by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee of the 
Company and any duly authorized committee of Directors constituted/empowered by the Board, from time to time, to exercise its 
powers conferred by this resolution) to enter into contracts or arrangements or transactions with Tapi Wellness Private Limited 
(“TWPL”), the related party, under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations for an aggregate value of 
up to Rupees 25.00 Crores excluding applicable taxes for FY 2026-27, in the nature of (i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or 
materials, and / or (ii) availing or rendering of any services and / or (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any 
kind and / or (iv) leasing of property of any kind, on such terms and conditions as provided in the explanatory statement annexed 
hereto and with the power to Board to modify, from time to time, in the best interest of the Company; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or any Committee constituted thereof, be and is hereby authorised to do or 
cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise with regard to 
any transactions including existing transactions, if any, with the related party and execute all such agreements, documents and writings 
on an ongoing basis, in its absolute discretion, and to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer(s) / Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all such acts and 
take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to the aforesaid resolution(s); 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board or any other person so authorized by the Board, in connection with any 
matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.” 

4. To approve Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions with Maalana Foods Private Limited, Related Party: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the approval 
given by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee of the 
Company and any duly authorized committee of Directors constituted/empowered by the Board, from time to time, to exercise its 
powers conferred by this resolution) to enter into contracts or arrangements or transactions with Maalana Foods Private Limited, the 
related party, under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations for an aggregate value of up to Rupees 
5.00 Crores excluding applicable taxes for FY 2026-27, in the nature of (i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, and / or (ii) 
availing or rendering of any services and / or (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind and / or (iv) leasing 
of property of any kind, on such terms and conditions as provided in the explanatory statement annexed hereto and with the power to 
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 Board to modify, from time to time, in the best interest of the Company; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or any Committee constituted thereof, be and is hereby authorised to do or 
cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise with regard to 
any transactions including existing transactions, if any, with the related party and execute all such agreements, documents and writings 
on an ongoing basis, in its absolute discretion, and to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer(s) / Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all such acts and 
take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to the aforesaid resolution(s); 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board or any other person so authorized by the Board, in connection with any 
matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects.” 

5. Remuneration payable to Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704416), Managing Director of the Company: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and 
pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the relevant 
provision of the Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable Regulations if any, of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and any other statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, the approval of the 
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the remuneration payable to Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704416), 
Managing Director (KMP) of the Company, for the financial years 2025-26 till 2026-27, the remaining tenure of his existing appointment, 
with liberty to the Board of Directors or Nomination & Remuneration Committee, to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the 
appointment and remuneration payable within the maximum limits as per details given in the Explanatory Statement and as may be 
agreed to, by and between the Board of Directors and Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of tenure of 
services of Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi as Managing Director, the payment of managerial remuneration shall be governed by the 
limits as specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or under any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
may be amended from time to time or any statutory re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all actions and steps 
expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution in conformity with the provisions of the Act and also to settle any question, 
difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard without requiring to secure any further consent or approval of the shareholders of the 
Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any 
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

6. Remuneration payable to Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704408), Whole-time Director of the Company: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as a Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) and 
pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the relevant 
provision of the Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable Regulations if any, of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and any other statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, the approval of the 
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the remuneration payable to Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704408), 
Whole Time Director (KMP) of the Company, for the financial years 2025-26 till 2026-27, the remaining tenure of his existing 
appointment, with liberty to the Board of Directors or Nomination & Remuneration Committee, to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions of the appointment and remuneration payable within the maximum limits as per details given in the Explanatory Statement 
and as may be agreed to, by and between the Board of Directors and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of tenure of 
services of Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi as Whole-time Director, the payment of managerial remuneration shall be governed by the 
limits as specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or under any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as 
may be amended from time to time or any statutory re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all actions and steps 
expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution in conformity with the provisions of the Act and also to settle any question, 

difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard without requiring to secure any further consent or approval of the shareholders of the 
Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be considered necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any 
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers,  
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, Varachha 
Road, Surat, Gujarat – 395 006, India 
 
Date: August 28, 2025 
Place: Surat 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

 

 
 

Kashyapkumar Pandav  
Company Secretary 
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Important Notes: 

1. Pursuant to the Circular No 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021, 02/2022, 10/2022, 9/2023 and 09/2024 dated 8th 

April 2020, 13th April 2020, 5th May 2020, 13th January 2021, 8th December 2021, 14th December 2021, 5th May 2022, 28th December 

2022, 25th September 2023 and 19th September, 2024 respectively, (“MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board of India vide 

its circular dated 3rd October, 2024 read with 12th May 2020, 15th January 2021, 13th May 2022, 5th January 2023 and 7th October 2023 

(“SEBI Circular”), permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence 

of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the 

AGM of the Company will be held through VC / OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the 7th AGM through 

VC/OAVM only. The deemed venue for the 7th AGM of the Company shall be the Registered Office of the Company. The detailed 

procedure for participating in the meeting through VC/OAVM is explained in the subsequent notes of this Notice. 

2. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) setting out material facts concerning the 

business under Item Nos. 3 and 4 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. 

3. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard II on General Meetings issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is also annexed. 

4. CS Praful N. Vekariya, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS: 21367; CP No: 10858), being Secretarial Auditor for F.Y. 

2024-25, issued a certificate confirming that the Tapi Fruit Processing Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 has been implemented 

in accordance with these regulations and in accordance with the resolution of the company in the general meeting passed on May 30, 

2023. This certificate will be placed before the Members at the Annual General Meeting. 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 

on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA and SEBI 

Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 

proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this 

Notice. 

6. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG 

Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM 

through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the 

Scrutinizer by email through their registered email address to pnvekariya12@gmail.com with copies marked to the Company at 

cs@tapifood.com and to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

7. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will not be closed and the Members whose names are recorded in 

the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, 

September 19, 2025, will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

9. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto. 

10. In line with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only 
through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Member may note 
that Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.tapifood.com. The 
Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2024-25 can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM. 

12. In case of joint holders attending the AGM together, only holder whose name appearing first will be entitled to vote. 

13. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM or who would like to ask 
questions or registered themselves as Speaker, are requested to write to the Company mentioning their name demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@tapifood.com on or before Monday, September 15, 2025 so as to enable the 
management to keep the information ready. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM. 

14. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-mail addresses submitted, by following 
the procedure given below; 
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(a) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front 
and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
cs@tapifood.com.  

(b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client 
master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@tapifood.com. 

(c) Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and Password by proving the details 
mentioned in Point (a) or (b) as the case may be. 

15. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, 
Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch 
details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to BSPL in case 
the shares are held in physical form. 

16. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in address or 
demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long period of 
time. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 

17. PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS AND PARTICIPATING 
AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM: 

i. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the MCA, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in 
respect of the businesses to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL, as 
the Authorised e-voting agency for facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

ii. Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 19, 2025, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as 
e-voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this 
Notice as intimation only. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of 
the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 19, 2025, shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote either 
electronically i.e. remote e-voting or e-voting system on the date of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this part.    

iii. Members may cast their votes on electronic voting system from any place (remote e-voting). The remote e-voting period will 
commence at 09:00 a.m. on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 and will end on 05:00 P.M. on Thursday, September 25, 2025. In addition, 
the facility for voting through electronic voting system shall also be made available during the AGM. Members attending the AGM 
who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast their vote through e-voting during the AGM. Members who 
have voted through remote e-voting shall be eligible to attend the AGM, however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the meeting.  

iv. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.  

v. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the 
Cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 19, 2025.  

vi. The Company has appointed CS Praful N. Vekariya, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS: 21367; CP No: 10858), to 
act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM, in a fair and 
transparent manner.  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CASTING VOTES BY REMOTE E-VOTING 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-voting system: 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

A. For OTP based login you can click on 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-

digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received 

on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
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Type of shareholders Login Method 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

B. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 

will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

C. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

D. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 

of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 

as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

E. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning 

the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

A. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

B. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 

companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 

the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

C. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 

option. 

D. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and 

PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 

evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in demat 

mode) login through their 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant 

registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
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Type of shareholders Login Method 

depository participants provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 

securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

A. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

B. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

C. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing 

IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. 

Cast your vote electronically. 

D. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares 

in demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares 

in demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

E. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated 

to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change 

your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on 

your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a 

.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 

ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 

password’. 

 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are 

not registered. 

F. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your 

demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

G. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

H. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
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I. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system: 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1) After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting 

cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2) Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the 

General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3) Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast 

your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6) You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7) Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

 

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 

Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pnvekariya12@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload 

Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will 

need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 

reset the password. 

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders 

available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.com 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option 

available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. 

NSDL and CDSL: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or at toll free no. 1800-21-09911 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1) Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members 

may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of 

“VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 

Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be 

displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and 

Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

2) Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

3) Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 
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4) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may 

experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 

Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5) Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name 

demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@tapifood.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

Company TAPI FRUIT PROCESSING LIMITED 

Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers, Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, Varachha Road, Surat, Gujarat – 395 006, 

India 

Website: www.tapifood.com; Email: cs@tapifood.com; Mob. No.: 73836 80150; Phone No.: +91 261 2551206 

Registrar and 

Transfer Agent 

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

A-802, Samudra Complex, Near Klassic Gold Hotel, Off C.G Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad – 380 009 

Tel No.: +91-79-4002 4135; Email: bssahd@bigshareonline.com; Web: www.bigshareonline.com 

E-Voting Agency 

& VC / OAVM 

Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in 

NSDL help desk 022 - 4886 7000 

Scrutinizer Mr. Praful N. Vekariya 

Email: pnvekariya12@gmail.com; Tel No.: +91 99096 56704 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretary Standard 2 on General Meetings) 

Item No. 3: 

To approve Contracts/Arrangements with Tapi Wellness Private Limited, Related Party: ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS 

Tapi Wellness Private Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing, developing and dealing in all kinds of neutraceuticals products, 
nutrition’s, minerals, pharmaceuticals, pro biotics, pre biotics, amino acid, biological, healthcare, ayurvedic, vitamins, foods supplements 
and dietary supplement products etc. However, Tapi Wellness Private Limited, owing formulation, and proposed to supply special 
ingredients, if require according to requirement of each product. Tapi Wellness Private Limited also proposes to get said products in loose 
packing and propose to pack said products in own packing and sealing facilities. 

Justification for why the proposed transaction is in the interest of the Company; 

The Company is continuously trying to leverage its extensive experience to solidify its industry position, by creating new products, entering 
new product categories and building new brands to capitalize on emerging trends. The Company has expertise under the modern food 
supplement segment.  

The Company intends to increase its research and development efforts on the product attributes that are most valued by its consumers, 
including taste, nutrition, food-safety and convenience. This would allow the Company to better serve increasing demand from consumers 
for healthier, tastier and higher quality food products and would enable the Company to further gain market share in the target segment. 
Nutraceutical gummies and probiotic JAM, Fruit Crush etc. are higher margin segment where there is significant demand and growth 
potential which is relatively untapped.  

Pursuant to the provisions of related party transaction under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) including any amendments thereto, all related party transactions that exceeds Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty 
Crores Only) or 10% (ten percent) of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the 
SME listed entity, whichever is lower shall be termed as Material Related Party Transactions and shall require prior approval  of 
shareholders. 

Whereas, the Company has manufacturing facilities backed by expertise team, Tapi Wellness Private Limited is engaged exclusively dealing 
in all kinds of neutraceuticals products, nutritions, minerals, pharmaceuticals, pro biotics, pre-biotics, amino acid, biologicals, healthcare, 
ayurvedic, vitamins, foods supplements and dietary supplement products etc. Accordingly, the Company has decided to synergy the 
expertise of both the Companies and decided to enter into long-term Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions with TWPL, for which 
prior approval of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company was sought at their respective meeting held on August 28, 
2025, whereby Audit Committee and Board of Directors have approved Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions for an aggregate value 
of up to Rupees 25.00 Crores excluding applicable taxes for FY 2026-2027, in the nature of (i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or 
materials, and / or (ii) availing or rendering of any services and / or (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind 
and / or (iv) leasing of property of any kind, on such terms and conditions as mentioned in this explanatory statement. Approval from 
Shareholders is now being sought at this meeting. 

Information required pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated 11th November, 2024, is as under: 

Name of the Related Party Tapi Wellness Private Limited 

Nature of relationship [including nature of its Interest 
(financial or otherwise)] 

Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi and Mr. Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi has 
control over TWPL 

Type, material terms and particulars of the proposed 
transaction 

(i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, and / or (ii) availing 
or rendering of any services and / or (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of, 
or buying, property of any kind and / or (iv) leasing of property of any 
kind 

Tenure of proposed transaction F.Y. 2026-27 

Value of the proposed transaction Rupees 25.00 Crore (excluding GST and other applicable taxes) 

Percentage of the company’s annual consolidated 
turnover for the immediately preceding financial year 
that is represented by the value of the proposed 
transaction 

123.83% 

(a) Details of the source of funds in connection with the 
proposed transaction 

(b) where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make 
given by the Company or its subsidiary or give loans, 
inter-corporate deposits, advances, or investments 

• Nature of indebtedness 

• Cost of funds and 

• Tenure 

Not Applicable 
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(c) Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate, repayment schedule, whether secured 
(nature of security) or unsecured 

(d) Purpose for which funds will be utilised 

Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the 
company 

In order to pursue business, the Company regularly executes transactions 
with related parties. These business opportunities support in furtherance 
of the revenue and profitability of the Company. 

Business synergy, operational efficiency, utilization of expertise of both 
entities 

Details about valuation, arm’s length and ordinary 
course of business 

The pricing mechanism would be as per Arm’s Length criteria based on 
the market price or alternative pricing method of relevant services and/or 
materials. In the case of reimbursements / recoveries, same would be basis 
actual cost incurred. 

Valuation or other external report, if any, relied upon by 
the listed entity in relation to the proposed transaction 

Not Applicable 

Any other information relevant or important for the 
shareholders to take an informed decision 

All relevant information forms a part of this explanatory statement setting 
out material facts. 

* Different orders for different products, time to time, maximum Rupees 25.00 Crores estimated for entire year. 

None, of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel KMP(s) or their relatives except Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi, Mr. Yash 
Ghanshyambhai Lukhi, and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi and their relatives, are concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the 
aforesaid resolution.  

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 3.be passed as Ordinary Resolutions.  

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, members may also note that no related party of the Company shall vote to approve the 
resolutions No. 3 whether the entity is a related party to the particular transaction or not. 

Item No. 4: 

To approve Contracts/Arrangements with Maalana Foods Private Limited, Related Party: ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS 

Maalana foods private Limited is engaged in the business of Manufacturing and trading of Jam and Jelly based product and is looking for 
Manufacturing of Jelly and Jam Based product on Private Labelling Basis. Tapi Fruit Processing Limited is agreed to provide the facility of 
Manufacturing of Companies Product on Private Label basis. 

Maalana Foods Private Limited is 'related party' of the company within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations, 2015”) as our non executive director Mr. Naveen Anand & his wife are the directors of  Maalana Foods Private 
Limited, hence the contracts, agreements, arrangements and transactions between Tapi Fruit Processing Limited with Maalana Foods 
Private Limited fall under the category of a related party transaction of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, rules framed there under. 

Pursuant to the provisions of related party transaction under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) including any amendments thereto, all related party transactions that exceeds Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty 
Crores Only) or 10% (ten percent) of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the 
SME listed entity, whichever is lower shall be termed as Material Related Party Transactions and shall require prior approval of 
shareholders.  

Accordingly, the Company has decided to enter into long-term Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions with Maalana Foods Private 
Limited, for which prior approval of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company was sought at their respective meeting 
held on August 28, 2025, whereby Audit Committee and Board of Directors have approved Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions for 
an aggregate value of up to Rupees 5.00 Crores excluding applicable taxes for FY 2026-27, in the nature of (i) sale, purchase or supply of any 
goods or materials, and / or (ii) availing or rendering of any services and / or (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of 
any kind and / or (iv) leasing of property of any kind, on such terms and conditions as mentioned in this explanatory statement. Approval 
from Shareholders is now being sought at this meeting. 

Information required pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 dated 11th November, 2024, is as under: 

Name of the Related Party Maalana Foods Private Limited 

Nature of relationship [including nature of its Interest 
(financial or otherwise)] 

Mr. Naveen Anand has control over Maalana Foods Private Limited 

Type, material terms and particulars of the proposed 
transaction 

(i) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, and / or (ii) availing 
or rendering of any services and / or (iii) selling or otherwise disposing of, 
or buying, property of any kind and / or (iv) leasing of property of any kind 

Tenure of proposed transaction F.Y. 2026-27 

Value of the proposed transaction Rupees 5.00 Crore (excluding GST and other applicable taxes) 

Percentage of the company’s annual consolidated 24.77% 
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turnover for the immediately preceding financial year 
that is represented by the value of the proposed 
transaction 

(a) Details of the source of funds in connection with the 
proposed transaction 

(b) where any financial indebtedness is incurred to make 
given by the Company or its subsidiary or give loans, 
inter-corporate deposits, advances, or investments 

• Nature of indebtedness 

• Cost of funds and 

• Tenure 

(c) Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate, repayment schedule, whether secured 
(nature of security) or unsecured 

(d) Purpose for which funds will be utilised 

Not Applicable 

Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the 
company 

In order to pursue business, the Company regularly executes transactions 
with related parties. These business opportunities support in furtherance of 
the revenue and profitability of the Company. 

Business synergy, operational efficiency, utilization of expertise of both 
entities 

Details about valuation, arm’s length and ordinary 
course of business 

The pricing mechanism would be as per Arm’s Length criteria based on the 
market price or alternative pricing method of relevant services and/or 
materials. In the case of reimbursements / recoveries, same would be basis 
actual cost incurred. 

Valuation or other external report, if any, relied upon by 
the listed entity in relation to the proposed transaction 

Not Applicable 

Any other information relevant or important for the 
shareholders to take an informed decision 

All relevant information forms a part of this explanatory statement setting 
out material facts. 

* Different orders for different products, time to time, maximum Rupees 5.00 Crores estimated for entire year. 

None, of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel KMP(s) or their relatives except Mr. Naveen Anand and their relatives, are concerned 
or interested, financial or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution.  

The Board recommends the resolution set out in Item No. 4.be passed as Ordinary Resolutions.  

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, members may also note that no related party of the Company shall vote to approve the 
resolutions No. 4 whether the entity is a related party to the particular transaction or not. 

Item No. 5 & 6: 

Remuneration payable to Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704416), Managing Director and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 
06704408), Whole-time Director of the Company: 

Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704416) has been appointed as a Managing Director of the Company for the period of 5 years from 
July 16, 2022 and Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704408) has been appointed as a Whole-time Director of the Company for the period 
of 5 years from July 16, 2022 along with remuneration payable on appointment for the period commencing from July 16, 2022 to July 16, 
2025. Payment of Remuneration to Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704416) is also approved by member on August 03, 2022.  
Hence, the approval of the members is sought to approve remuneration payable to him as the remuneration for the financial years 2025-26 
till 2026-27, the remaining tenure of his existing appointment.  

Looking to the responsibilities undertaken and contributions made by the aforesaid Directors Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 
06704416), Managing Director and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi (DIN: 06704408), Whole-time Director of the company in development 
& growth of the Company and taking into consideration the expanded scale of operations and the overall increase in management 
responsibilities and such other qualities which they developed during the tenure of their respective offices, as recommended by Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 28, 2025 had approved of remuneration to be paid for 
F.Y. 2025-26 to 2026-27 on the following terms and conditions as stated below.  

Pursuant to provision of section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 the payment remuneration of Executive Directors require 
approval of shareholders by way of special resolution. 

Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi, Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi and Mr. Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi are interested in the resolution/s 
set out at Item Nos. 5 and 6 of the Notice respectively. Their relatives may also be deemed to be interested in the respective resolutions, to 
the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company. Save and except the above, none of the other Directors/Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in these resolutions. 

A combined statement containing therein information as required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including abstract of the 
terms of remuneration is provided hereunder.  

Your Directors recommend the special resolutions at Item Nos. 5 & 6 for your approval. 
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COMBINED STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

1. Nature of industry: The Company is engaged in Manufacturing of Fruit and Food Products. 
2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: Not applicable as the company has already undertaken 

commercial activities long back. 
3. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions 

appearing in the prospectus: Not applicable 
4. Financial performance:          (INR In Hundred) 

 

Particular 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Revenue from operation 17,49,760.90 21,01,666.52 

Other Income 9,020.98 25,479.76 

Total Income 17,58,781.88 21,27,146.29 

Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax [PBDITA] (68,061.28) 47,622.81 

Net Profit for the year (1,57,227.64) (25,193.29) 

5. Foreign investments or collaboration: Nil 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE MANAGING DIRECTOR & WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR: 

1. Background details: 

Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi have vast experience in the field of Manufacturing of Fruit and 
food product and related product. 

2. Past Remuneration 

For the Financial Year 2024–25, the remuneration paid to Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi was 
18.00 lakhs and 6.00 lakhs respectively. 

3. Job profile and their suitability: 

Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi have played a pivotal role in the growth and development of the Company and is responsible for 
creating the overall vision of the Company and is actively involved in all techno-commercial departments. Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai 
Lukhi have currently looking after all the financial and strategic matters of the company. Both the member shall exert their full time 
energy to their respective duties and they shall be responsible for developing and recommending to the board, the business plan and 
staffing plan. 

4. Award/ Recognition Received: 

No awards/recognition has been received during the year. 

5. Remuneration proposed: 

Abstracts of terms of Managerial Remuneration payable to the Directors are given in the subsequent paras. 

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and person: 

Remuneration proposed to Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi are based on their experience, job 
profile and responsibilities. No comparable data of remuneration in industry is available with us for similar size and business.  

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company or relationship with the Managerial Personnel, if any: 

The details of shares held in the Company by Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi and Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi, their relatives 
and the entities in which they are interested are as under: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director & his relatives No. of shares held % of total no. of shares 

1 Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi 1672647 38.89% 

2 Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi 1133853 26.37% 

3 Lukhi Ushaben Ghanshyambhai 5000 0.12% 

4 Shweta Ashokkumar Lukhi 5000 0.12% 

5 Laljibhai Shamjibhai Lukhi Alias Patel 5000 0.12% 

6 Yash Ghanshyambhai Lukhi 5000 0.12% 

OTHER INFORMATION: 

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits, Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement, Expected increase in productivity and 
profits in measurable terms: 
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During the previous financial year company has incurred loss due to increase in raw material prices, other expenses and decrease in 
revenue from operation. The Company has initiated certain steps such as better product mix, cost control, borrowing at cheaper rates, and 
improving efficiency etc. The company is exploring various alternatives to augment additional working capital requirement to scale up the 
operations. The company has chalked out ambitious growth plans to scale up operations and profitability. 

The Company is very conscious about improvement in productivity and undertakes constant measures to improve it. However, it is 
extremely difficult in the present scenario to predict profits in measurable terms. The company has all infrastructures ready to scale the 
operations. 

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL FOR F.Y. 2025-26 & 2026-27: 

1. Mr. Ghanshyam Laljibhai Lukhi 
 

A. Remuneration: 

Basic Salary: Not exceeding Rs. 1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per month with such increments as the Board may 
decide from time to time subject however to a ceiling of Rs. 5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakh only) per month as Basic Salary. 

B. Perquisites: 

Medical Allowance: Reimbursement of all expenses incurred for self and family at actual (including domiciliary and medical expenses 
and insurance premium for medical and hospitalization policy as applicable), as per Company policy, subject to maximum of Rs. 
15000/- (Rupees Fifteen Thousand Only) per annum. 

Reimbursement of entertainment, travelling and all other expenses incurred for the business of the Company as per the policy of the 
Company. 

Conveyance Allowance: Not exceeding of Rs. 19,200/- (Rupees Nineteen Thousand and Two Hundred Only) per annum. 

Other Allowances / benefits, perquisites - any other allowances, benefits and perquisites as per the Rules applicable to the Senior 
Executives of the Company and / or which may become applicable in the future and / or any other allowance, perquisites as the 
Board may from time to time decide. 

Any other one time / periodic retirement allowances / benefits as may be decided by the Board at the time of retirement. 

C. The aggregate of the remuneration and perquisites as aforesaid in any financial year shall not exceed the limit from time to time under 
Section 197, Section 198 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made there under, read with Schedule V of the said Act 
or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, or otherwise as may be permissible at law. 

 

2. Mr. Ashokkumar Laljibhai Lukhi 
 

A. Remuneration: 

Basic Salary: Not exceeding Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Thousand Only) per month with such increments as the Board may 
decide from time to time subject however to a ceiling of Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only) per month as Basic Salary. 

B. Perquisites: 

Medical Allowance: Reimbursement of all expenses incurred for self and family at actual (including domiciliary and medical expenses 
and insurance premium for medical and hospitalization policy as applicable), as per Company policy, subject to maximum of Rs. 

15000/- (Rupees Fifteen Thousand Only) per annum. 

Reimbursement of entertainment, travelling and all other expenses incurred for the business of the Company as per the policy of the 
Company. 

Conveyance Allowance: Not exceeding of Rs. 19,200/- (Rupees Nineteen Thousand and Two Hundred Only) per annum. 

Other Allowances / benefits, perquisites - any other allowances, benefits and perquisites as per the Rules applicable to the Senior 
Executives of the Company and / or which may become applicable in the future and / or any other allowance, perquisites as the 
Board may from time to time decide. 

Any other one time / periodic retirement allowances / benefits as may be decided by the Board at the time of retirement. 

C. The aggregate of the remuneration and perquisites as aforesaid in any financial year shall not exceed the limit from time to time under 
Section 197, Section 198 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made there under, read with Schedule V of the said Act 
or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, or otherwise as may be permissible at law. 

 

 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers,  
Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, Varachha 
Road, Surat, Gujarat – 395 006, India 
 

Date: August 28, 2025 
Place: Surat 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

 

 
 

Kashyapkumar Pandav  
Company Secretary 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 36 (3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL 

STANDARDS-II ISSUED BY ICSI FOR ITEM NO. 2: 

Name Mr. Naveen Anand 

Date of Birth April 01, 1982 

Qualification 8th  

Experience - Expertise in specific functional areas - Job 

profile and suitability 
Mr. Naveen Anand, aged 43 years, is a Non - Executive Director of our 

Company since July 12, 2022. He has experience in the field of marketing 

and trading of food for more than 20 years. He is the promoter of Maalana 

Foods Private Limited and also runs a trading firm under the “Freunde 

Enterprise” which deals in the FMCG Foods Products. 

No. of Shares held as on March 31, 2025 4500 Equity Shares 

Terms & Conditions No change in the existing terms and conditions 

Remuneration Last Drawn Not Applicable 

Remuneration sought to be paid Not Applicable 

Number of Board Meetings attended during the Financial 

Year 2024-25 
6 out of 6 

Date of Original Appointment July 12, 2022 

Date of Appointment in current terms July 12, 2022 

Directorships held in public companies including deemed 

public companies 
Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of public 

companies* 
1 Membership & Chairmanship 

Inter-se Relationship with other Directors. No relationship with any other director 

* Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Grievances and Relationship Committee. 

Registered office:  
Office No-212 to 214 Sunrise Chambers,  

Near Ashok Colony, Mini Bazar, Varachha 
Road, Surat, Gujarat – 395 006, India 
 
 
Date: August 28, 2025 
Place: Surat 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For, Tapi Fruit Processing Limited 

CIN: L15400GJ2018PLC103201 

 

 
 
 

Kashyapkumar Pandav  
Company Secretary 
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NOTES 
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